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TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE

BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN MINUTES

January 27, 2015

BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN MEETING

A regular meeting of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Town of Mount Carmel, Tennessee, was
held at the Town of Mount Carmel City Hall, 100 East Main Street, on January 27, 2015, at 5: 30 p. m.

s Those present and participating at the meeting:
Eugene Christian, Alderman
Margaret Christian, Alderman

f Wanda Davidson, Alderman

Chris Jones, Alderman

Carl Wolfe, Alderman

Paul Hale, Vice- Mayor

Larry Frost, Mayor

Those absent:

INone
s

Staff Present: 

Christopher Raines, Jr., Town Attorney
Marian Sandidge, City Recorder
Tammy Conner, Certified Municipal Finance Officer ii
Vince Pishner, Building Inspector

il
CALL TO ORDER I

The Mount Carmel Board of Mayor and Aldermen was called to order on January 27, 2015, at 5: 30 p. m.     
by Mayor Larry Frost at Mount Carmel City Hall.  Mayor Frost also chaired the meeting.    

INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE i

Alderman Margaret Christian conducted the invocation and Vice- Mayor Hale led the Pledge of Allegiance.     

I
ROLL CALL

Marian Sandidge, City Recorder, conducted roll call.  Board members present were Mayor Frost, Vice-
Mayor Hale, Alderman Eugene Christian, Alderman Margaret Christian, Alderman Davidson, Alderman
Jones and Alderman Wolfe.  No members were absent. An attendance list is attached.    I

I

WELCOME FROM THE MAYOR

Mayor Frost welcomed all visitors to the meeting.

MINUTES, DEPARTMENT REPORTS

A motion was made by Alderman Eugene Christian seconded by Alderman Wolfe to approve the
department reports, committee reports, the minutes of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen meeting and the
minutes of the Safety Committee meeting of December 16, 2014.  The Board unanimously approved.
Motion passed.       i
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NEW BUSINESS

A.  ACCEPT THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT ENDING JUNE 30, 2014, MICKEY ELLIS, CPA.
Mayor Frost recognized Mickey Ellis,  CPA who presented the ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT
ENDING JUNE 30, 2014, to the Board.  The Board received an " unqualified opinion" the best possible
finding on its 2013- 2014 fiscal year audit according to Mr. Ellis.  Mount Carmel has exceeded its liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $ 11, 077, 737.  Of this
amount, $ 3, 802, 009 may be used to meet the Town' s ongoing obligations.  The Town' s total net position
increased $ 346, 522 during the current year.  As of June 30, 2014, the Town' s General Fund reported a
fund balance of$ 2, 698, 145 which was a $ 97, 004 increase over the prior year.  The Sewer Fund had an

increase of $296, 866 in net positon with $ 259,991 of this amount relating to a capital grant.  During the
current year, the Town issued $ 545, 000 in refunding bonds to refund a previous bond issue in the Sewer
Fund.   There were no negative findings and the previous year' s findings have been corrected.  A motion I

was made by Alderman Eugene Christian and seconded by Alderman Wolfe to accept the audit.  The
Board unanimously agreed.  Motion passed.  A copy of the FY 2013- 2014 audit report is attached to the
minutes.

B.  RESOLUTION 15- 523.  A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE AN ACTUARIAL STUDY TO
DETERMINE THE LIABILITY ASSOCIATED WITH ALLOWING MEMBERS WITH ONE YEAR
SERVICE CREDIT IN THE TENNESSEE CONSOLIDATED RETIREMENT SYSTEM TO ESTABLISH
RETIREMENT CREDIT FOR TIME DURING WHICH SUCH MEMBERS WERE EMPLOYED BY A
POLITICAL SUBDIVISION IN ACCORDANCE WITH TITLE 8, SECTIONS 34 7, OF TENNESSEE

CODE ANNOTATED.  Mayor Frost presented Resolution 14- 513, " A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE AN
ACTUARIAL STUDY TO DETERMINE THE LIABILITY ASSOCIATED WITH ALLOWING MEMBERS
WITH ONE YEAR SERVICE CREDIT IN THE TENNESSEE CONSOLIDATED RETIREMENT SYSTEM

TO ESTABLISH RETIREMENT CREDIT FOR TIME DURING WHICH SUCH MEMBERS WERE
EMPLOYED BY A POLITICAL SUBDIVISION IN ACCORDANCE WITH TITLE 8, SECTIONS 34- 37, OF

TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED." Mayor Frost explained the study would cost the Town approximately
500.  Following some discussion, a motion was made by Vice- Mayor Hale and seconded by Alderman i

Eugene Christian to approve Resolution 15- 513 as presented. The majority of the Board agreed with the
exception of Alderman Jones, who declared a conflict of interest and abstained. Motion passed.  

C.  DECLARE A SONY DIGITAL CAMERA AS SURPWS FOR DISPOSAL. Building Inspector, Vince
Pishner, asked permission to dispose of a Sony digital camera that is no longer operable.   Following IIsome discussion a motion was made by Alderman Eugene Christian and seconded by Alderman Jones to
declare the Sony digital camera as surplus for disposal. The Board unanimously agreed.  Motion passed.

D.  DECLARE CUT TIMBER AS SURPLUS PROPERTY AND CONDUCT A SALE. The Mayor brought I
before the Board the proposal for Town employees to cut the timber on roughly 30 acres of Town
property.  The property is adjacent to the sewer plant and includes the parcel purchased recently from
Martin Ott. Once the timber is cut and declared surplus, he proposes to sell the logs at public auction.

Alderman Jones made a motion with Alderman Davidson seconding to table the decision until the Town
had the opportunity to meet with the railroad authorities and the Town engineer.   Those voting Yes:

g Alderman Davidson and Alderman Jones.   Those voting No:   Alderman Eugene Christian, Alderman
Margaret Christian, Alderman Wolfe, Vice- Mayor Hale and Mayor Frost.  Motion failed.

i

Mayor Frost assured the Board the Town engineer was studying the issues. Following much discussion, a i
motion was made by Alderman Margaret Christian and seconded by Alderman Jones to declare cut

g timber as surplus property and conduct a sale at public auction.  Those voting Yes: Alderman Eugene
j Christian, Alderman Margaret Christian, Alderman Wolfe, Vice- Mayor Hale and Mayor Frost. Those voting

No: Alderman Davidson and Alderman Jones. Motion passed.
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OLD BUSINESS

A.  DISCUSS TIME CLOCKS. Following some discussion, a motion was made by Alderman Wolfe and
seconded by Alderman Eugene Christian to utilize and put into use time clocks in all departments. Those
voting Yes: Alderman Eugene Christian, Alderman Margaret Christian, Alderman Jones, Alderman Wolfe,
Vice- Mayor Hale and Mayor Frost. Alderman Davidson abstained.  Motion passed.  Mayor said the time

clocks would be donated and in place by the end of February.

REPORTS

A.  MAYOR' S COMMENTS

Mayor Frost reported Public Works has been working on the brine solution.  Since it has not snowed this
year, they haven' t had the opportunity to test it yet.

He also reported that two new businesses would be coming into the Town in the near future. They will be
located at the underpass near Subway.

He invited the public to join us Friday, February 13, 2015 from 6: 00 p. m. to 9: 00 p. m. at the Mount Carmel
City Hall Building upstairs for the Mount Carmel Sweethearts Party.   Mount Carmel' s celebration of

sweethearts residing in Mount CarmeL Light refreshments, live entertainment and door prizes.   

B.  CITIZEN COMMENTS

There were no citizen comments.

C.  DEPARTMENT REPORTS Illi
s Department heads written reports are attached to the minutes.   

ADJOURN

I,

Being no further business,  a motion was made by Alderman Eugene Christian and seconded by I

Alderman Wolfe to adjoum the Mount Carmel Board of Mayor and Aldermen meeting at 6: 16 p. m. The
Board unanimously agreed.  Motion passed.  I

i
I
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i

INDEPGNDENT AUDITOR' S REPORT

t

To the Board of Mayor and Aldermen

fown of Mount Carmel i

Mount C rmel, Tennessee

i

Report on the Financial Statements i
I

I have audited Che accompanying financial statemenCs of the governmental activities, the business- type i
j activities, each major funcl, and the aggregate remaining fund infonnation of the Town of Mo mt Carmei,    

Tennessee, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial stateinents,    

which collectively comprise the Town' s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.     

Management' s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
s

Management is responsible for the prepaiation and fair presentation of these financial statements in

accordance with accounting rinciples generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, iinpleil entation, and inaintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair

i presentation of tinancial statements that are free fiom inaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.    
i

Auditor' s Responsibility
i

My responsibility is to espress opinions on these tinancial statements based on my audit. I conductetl my
S audit in accorclance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the

standards applicable to tinancial audits containecl in Goverrm tent Audiling St mdnrds,  issued by the
Coinptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that I plan and perfonn the audit to i

j obtain reasonable assurance about whether the tinancial statements are free from material misstatement

i
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

3 tinancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor' s judgment, including the assessment
of the risl: s of material inisstatement of the financial statements, whetl er due to fraud or error. In making I

those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity' s preparation and fair i
presentation of the tinancial stateinents in order to design audiC procedures that are app ropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of es ressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity' s internal
control. Accordingly, I e press no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness ot signiticanC aeeounting estimates made by management,    
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the tinancial statements.     li
I believe tl at d e audiC evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to rovide a basis for my

I

audit opinions. 

Opinions
i

In my opiniun, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective tinancial position of the governmental activities, the business- ty e activities, eacl ina,jor fiind,    
and the aggregate reinainin fund information of the Town oi' Mount Carmel, Tennessee, as of J me 30,    
3014, and the respective ehanges in tinancial position, where applicable, cash flows thereof, and the
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I
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i

respective buclgetaiy comparison tor the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in tl e Uniteci States of America.   

s I
Other Matters

Regzdred Suyplen2entary Lzforuzalion
I

y Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management' s I

discussion and nalysis and schedule of funding progress on pages 3- 9 1nd 43 be presented to supplement I

the basic fuiancial statements. Such inPormation, although not a par[ of the basic tinancial statements, is I

required by the Governmental Accountin Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential art of I

tinancial reporting for placind the basic financial statements in an appro riate operational, economic, or
historic l context I have applied certain limited procedures to the req iired supplementaiy infonnation in
accordance with auditing standards aenerally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of li
inquiries of m n geinent nbout the methods of preparing the information and comparing the infonroation I

for consistency - vith management' s responses to my inquiries, the basic tinancial statements, and other
knowlecige I obt ined durin my audit of Yhe basic financi l statements. I do not ex ress an opinion or i

s provide anv assurance on the intorination because the limited procedures do not provide me with sufticienC
I

evitlence to e ress an opinion or provide any assurance.       

Ulfter Ir7Jorn iut ior7 I,

i

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town of Mount Carmel, Tennessee' s basic financill statements.   The combining and
individual nonmajor fund tinancial statements and other suppleinenta y information are presented for

t purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

a
The combinin, nd individual nonmajor fund tinancial statements and other supplementary information

re the responsibiliry of management and were cierived from and related directly ro the unciertying i
accountin and other records used to prepare the basic tinancial statements.   Such information has been

sul jected to the a iditing proeedures applied in d e audit of the basic tinai cial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and recoiiciling such infmmation directly to the underlying

t

k accounting and other records used to prep re the basic financial statements or ro the basic financial
stateinents themselves, and other additional rocedures in accordance with auditing standards ge erally

F

ccepted in the United States of America.  In my opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund i

financial statements and other supplementary information are fairly st2ted in II inaterial respects in
t relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

i
Other Reporting Required by Govern nerit Auduing Stundarrls I

I
In accordance with Governm r _ 9uditirl. Sia adurds, I have also issued my report dated December I6,      
2014, on my consideration of the Town of Mount Carmel, " I' ennessee' s internal control over financial
reporting and on my tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and i
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of iny testing of
internal control over tinancial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide

an opinion on internal conh ol over tinancial re orting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an udit perforn ed in accordance with Gm errimenl . 4ucfi[ in; S andcrrds in consitlering the Town of i

Mount Carmel. Tennessee' s inteinal control over tinanci il re ortingan i compliance.      
I

i
I

David M. Ellis, CPA

Greeneville. Tennessee

December I6. ' Ola
i

I

i

I
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TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE

MANAGEMENT' S DISCUSSION& ANALYSIS

Unaudited- Required Supplementary Information)
For the Year Ended, June 30, 2014

s
l
a As management of the Town of Mount Carmel, Tennessee( i.e, the Town), we offer readers of

the Towds financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of
t the Town for the year ended June 30, 2014. We encourage readers to consider this information in

conjunction with the basic financial statements, the notes to the financial statements and other

supplementary information which has been provided.
i

Financial Highlights

i Key fmancial highlights for the year ended June 30, 2014 are as follows:

The assets and defened outflows of resources of the Town exceeded its liabilities and

ideferred inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $ 11, 077, 737.
Of this amount, $ 3, 802, 009 ( unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the Town' s
ongoing obligations.

The Town' s total net position increased $ 346, 522 during the current year.
As of June 30, 2014, the Town' s General Fund reported a fund balance of$ 2, 698, 145
which was a$ 97, 004 increase over the prior year.

The proprietary fund being the Sewer Fund had an increase of$ 296, 866 in net position

s with $ 259, 991 of this amount relating to a capital grant.       

During the current yeaz, the Town issued $ 545, 000 in refunding bonds to refund a
previous bond issue in the Sewer Fund.   

4 Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town' s basic financial

statements. The Town' s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) govemment-     

i wide financial statements 2) fund financial statements and 3) notes to the basic financial

statements. The report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements themselves.      I

3,      

I
Government- Wide Financial Statements

3 The government- wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview I

of the Town' s finances in a manner similar to private- sector business.
i

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Town' s assets, liabilities, and
I

deferred outflows and inflows of resources with the difference between these reported as net

position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position serves as a useful indicator of whether I
the financial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating.       i,

x
Y The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Town' s net positions changed
s' during the most recent year. All changes in net positions are reported as soon as the underlying

event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash tlows. Thus,      
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash
flows in future fiscal periods.  

i

3

i I
i

I
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Both of the government- wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town that are
principally supported by taaces and intergovernmental revenues ( governmental activities). The

r governmental activities of the Town include general government, fire, police, streets, state street

aid, recreation, library, sanitation, senior citizen and the drug fund operations. The business- type
activity of the Town represents sewer services with revenues being primarily user charges for
services rendered.

i

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The Town, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance- related
requirements. All of the funds of the Town can be divided into rivo categories- governmental

a funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions repoRed as
jgovernmental activities in the govemment-wide financial statements.  However,  unlike the

government- wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-

term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources

available at the end of the yeaz. Such information may be useful in evaluating the Town' s near-
term financial requirements.

s

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of government- wide financial

j statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for govemmental funds with similar
r information presented for governmental activities in the govemment- wide financial statements.

Both the governmental funds balance sheet and the govemmental funds statements of revenues,      

expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison

between governmental funds and activities. 

a

The Town maintains two governmental funds.  Information is presented separately in the
2 governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,      

expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund which is always considered to I

be a major fund. Data for the other remaining fund which is the Drug Fund is presented in a
i single presentation. Prior to June 30, 2011, the Solid Waste Sanitation Fund was reported I

separate; however, with the implementation of GASB # 54, the Solid Waste Sanitation Fund is
5 now reported in the General Fund. A supplemental schedule of activities for the Solid Waste

I,
Sanitation Fund is presented as other supplemental information. Individual fund data for the Drug i

Fund is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in the report. The Town adopts
an annual budget for its governmental funds and budgetary comparison information is located in I
the basic financial statements or in supplementary information. 

I

Proprietary Funds
The Town maintains one proprietary fund being the Sewer Fund. Enterprise funds are used to
report the same functions as business- type activities in the government- wide financial statements.      

Proprietary or enterprise funds provide the same type of information as the government- wide
financial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide
sepazate information for the Sewer Fund, since this is considered to be a major fund of the Tow.       

5

t
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full

understanding of the data provided in the government- wide and fund financial statements.

Required & Other Supplementary Information
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, additional supplementary
information can be found in sections of this report.

S
Government- Wide Financial Analysis

The Town presents its financial statements under the reporting model required by the
Govemmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No.  34  ( GASB34),  Basic Financial
Statements- and ManagemenYs Discussion and Analysis ( MD  &  A)  -  for state and local

governments.

z As noted earlier, net position changes over time serves as a useful indicator of the Town' s

financial position. In the case of the Town, its overall net position increased $ 346, 522 in the

current year.      I

The largest portion of the Town' s net position ( 63%) reflects its investment in capital assets( e. g.,     
land, buildin s infrastructure sewer s stem lant lines swimmin ool and e ui ment • lessB   Y P    ,       ,    BP 9 P      ),

any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The Town uses these capital
4 assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future

spending. Although the Town' s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it
d should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided for from other

sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.   I
I

The second largest portion net position consists of unrestricted net position ( 34%) and this may
be used to meet the Town' s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.    

I

An additional portion of the Town' s net position ( 3%) represents resources that aze subject to I

external restriction on how they may be used.     

R
f The Town of Mount Carmel' s net position and changes in net position are presented below:     

I
I

2 I

3
I

I
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TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE

BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN MINUTES

January 27, 2015

BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN MEETING

A regular meeting of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Town of Mount Carmel, Tennessee, was
held at the Town of Mount Carmel City Hall, 100 East Main Street, on January 27, 2015, at 5: 30 p. m.

s Those present and participating at the meeting:
Eugene Christian, Alderman
Margaret Christian, Alderman

f Wanda Davidson, Alderman

Chris Jones, Alderman

Carl Wolfe, Alderman

Paul Hale, Vice- Mayor

Larry Frost, Mayor

Those absent:

INone
s

Staff Present: 

Christopher Raines, Jr., Town Attorney
Marian Sandidge, City Recorder
Tammy Conner, Certified Municipal Finance Officer ii
Vince Pishner, Building Inspector

il
CALL TO ORDER I

The Mount Carmel Board of Mayor and Aldermen was called to order on January 27, 2015, at 5: 30 p. m.     
by Mayor Larry Frost at Mount Carmel City Hall.  Mayor Frost also chaired the meeting.    

INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE i

Alderman Margaret Christian conducted the invocation and Vice- Mayor Hale led the Pledge of Allegiance.     

I
ROLL CALL

Marian Sandidge, City Recorder, conducted roll call.  Board members present were Mayor Frost, Vice-
Mayor Hale, Alderman Eugene Christian, Alderman Margaret Christian, Alderman Davidson, Alderman
Jones and Alderman Wolfe.  No members were absent. An attendance list is attached.    I

I

WELCOME FROM THE MAYOR

Mayor Frost welcomed all visitors to the meeting.

MINUTES, DEPARTMENT REPORTS

A motion was made by Alderman Eugene Christian seconded by Alderman Wolfe to approve the
department reports, committee reports, the minutes of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen meeting and the
minutes of the Safety Committee meeting of December 16, 2014.  The Board unanimously approved.
Motion passed.       i

d
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January 27, 2015
BMA Meeting

NEW BUSINESS

A.  ACCEPT THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT ENDING JUNE 30, 2014, MICKEY ELLIS, CPA.
Mayor Frost recognized Mickey Ellis,  CPA who presented the ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT
ENDING JUNE 30, 2014, to the Board.  The Board received an " unqualified opinion" the best possible
finding on its 2013- 2014 fiscal year audit according to Mr. Ellis.  Mount Carmel has exceeded its liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $ 11, 077, 737.  Of this
amount, $ 3, 802, 009 may be used to meet the Town' s ongoing obligations.  The Town' s total net position
increased $ 346, 522 during the current year.  As of June 30, 2014, the Town' s General Fund reported a
fund balance of$ 2, 698, 145 which was a $ 97, 004 increase over the prior year.  The Sewer Fund had an

increase of $296, 866 in net positon with $ 259,991 of this amount relating to a capital grant.  During the
current year, the Town issued $ 545, 000 in refunding bonds to refund a previous bond issue in the Sewer
Fund.   There were no negative findings and the previous year' s findings have been corrected.  A motion I

was made by Alderman Eugene Christian and seconded by Alderman Wolfe to accept the audit.  The
Board unanimously agreed.  Motion passed.  A copy of the FY 2013- 2014 audit report is attached to the
minutes.

B.  RESOLUTION 15- 523.  A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE AN ACTUARIAL STUDY TO
DETERMINE THE LIABILITY ASSOCIATED WITH ALLOWING MEMBERS WITH ONE YEAR
SERVICE CREDIT IN THE TENNESSEE CONSOLIDATED RETIREMENT SYSTEM TO ESTABLISH
RETIREMENT CREDIT FOR TIME DURING WHICH SUCH MEMBERS WERE EMPLOYED BY A
POLITICAL SUBDIVISION IN ACCORDANCE WITH TITLE 8, SECTIONS 34 7, OF TENNESSEE

CODE ANNOTATED.  Mayor Frost presented Resolution 14- 513, " A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE AN
ACTUARIAL STUDY TO DETERMINE THE LIABILITY ASSOCIATED WITH ALLOWING MEMBERS
WITH ONE YEAR SERVICE CREDIT IN THE TENNESSEE CONSOLIDATED RETIREMENT SYSTEM

TO ESTABLISH RETIREMENT CREDIT FOR TIME DURING WHICH SUCH MEMBERS WERE
EMPLOYED BY A POLITICAL SUBDIVISION IN ACCORDANCE WITH TITLE 8, SECTIONS 34- 37, OF

TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED." Mayor Frost explained the study would cost the Town approximately
500.  Following some discussion, a motion was made by Vice- Mayor Hale and seconded by Alderman i

Eugene Christian to approve Resolution 15- 513 as presented. The majority of the Board agreed with the
exception of Alderman Jones, who declared a conflict of interest and abstained. Motion passed.  

C.  DECLARE A SONY DIGITAL CAMERA AS SURPWS FOR DISPOSAL. Building Inspector, Vince
Pishner, asked permission to dispose of a Sony digital camera that is no longer operable.   Following IIsome discussion a motion was made by Alderman Eugene Christian and seconded by Alderman Jones to
declare the Sony digital camera as surplus for disposal. The Board unanimously agreed.  Motion passed.

D.  DECLARE CUT TIMBER AS SURPLUS PROPERTY AND CONDUCT A SALE. The Mayor brought I
before the Board the proposal for Town employees to cut the timber on roughly 30 acres of Town
property.  The property is adjacent to the sewer plant and includes the parcel purchased recently from
Martin Ott. Once the timber is cut and declared surplus, he proposes to sell the logs at public auction.

Alderman Jones made a motion with Alderman Davidson seconding to table the decision until the Town
had the opportunity to meet with the railroad authorities and the Town engineer.   Those voting Yes:

g Alderman Davidson and Alderman Jones.   Those voting No:   Alderman Eugene Christian, Alderman
Margaret Christian, Alderman Wolfe, Vice- Mayor Hale and Mayor Frost.  Motion failed.

i

Mayor Frost assured the Board the Town engineer was studying the issues. Following much discussion, a i
motion was made by Alderman Margaret Christian and seconded by Alderman Jones to declare cut

g timber as surplus property and conduct a sale at public auction.  Those voting Yes: Alderman Eugene
j Christian, Alderman Margaret Christian, Alderman Wolfe, Vice- Mayor Hale and Mayor Frost. Those voting

No: Alderman Davidson and Alderman Jones. Motion passed.
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OLD BUSINESS

A.  DISCUSS TIME CLOCKS. Following some discussion, a motion was made by Alderman Wolfe and
seconded by Alderman Eugene Christian to utilize and put into use time clocks in all departments. Those
voting Yes: Alderman Eugene Christian, Alderman Margaret Christian, Alderman Jones, Alderman Wolfe,
Vice- Mayor Hale and Mayor Frost. Alderman Davidson abstained.  Motion passed.  Mayor said the time

clocks would be donated and in place by the end of February.

REPORTS

A.  MAYOR' S COMMENTS

Mayor Frost reported Public Works has been working on the brine solution.  Since it has not snowed this
year, they haven' t had the opportunity to test it yet.

He also reported that two new businesses would be coming into the Town in the near future. They will be
located at the underpass near Subway.

He invited the public to join us Friday, February 13, 2015 from 6: 00 p. m. to 9: 00 p. m. at the Mount Carmel
City Hall Building upstairs for the Mount Carmel Sweethearts Party.   Mount Carmel' s celebration of

sweethearts residing in Mount CarmeL Light refreshments, live entertainment and door prizes.   

B.  CITIZEN COMMENTS

There were no citizen comments.

C.  DEPARTMENT REPORTS Illi
s Department heads written reports are attached to the minutes.   

ADJOURN

I,

Being no further business,  a motion was made by Alderman Eugene Christian and seconded by I

Alderman Wolfe to adjoum the Mount Carmel Board of Mayor and Aldermen meeting at 6: 16 p. m. The
Board unanimously agreed.  Motion passed.  I

i
I

Approved:     
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BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN MEETING

A regular meeting of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Town of Mount Carmel, Tennessee, was
held at the Town of Mount Carmel City Hall, 100 East Main Street, on January 27, 2015, at 5: 30 p. m.
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il
CALL TO ORDER I

The Mount Carmel Board of Mayor and Aldermen was called to order on January 27, 2015, at 5: 30 p. m.     
by Mayor Larry Frost at Mount Carmel City Hall.  Mayor Frost also chaired the meeting.    

INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE i

Alderman Margaret Christian conducted the invocation and Vice- Mayor Hale led the Pledge of Allegiance.     

I
ROLL CALL

Marian Sandidge, City Recorder, conducted roll call.  Board members present were Mayor Frost, Vice-
Mayor Hale, Alderman Eugene Christian, Alderman Margaret Christian, Alderman Davidson, Alderman
Jones and Alderman Wolfe.  No members were absent. An attendance list is attached.    I

I

WELCOME FROM THE MAYOR

Mayor Frost welcomed all visitors to the meeting.

MINUTES, DEPARTMENT REPORTS

A motion was made by Alderman Eugene Christian seconded by Alderman Wolfe to approve the
department reports, committee reports, the minutes of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen meeting and the
minutes of the Safety Committee meeting of December 16, 2014.  The Board unanimously approved.
Motion passed.       i
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A.  DISCUSS TIME CLOCKS. Following some discussion, a motion was made by Alderman Wolfe and
seconded by Alderman Eugene Christian to utilize and put into use time clocks in all departments. Those
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Vice- Mayor Hale and Mayor Frost. Alderman Davidson abstained.  Motion passed.  Mayor said the time

clocks would be donated and in place by the end of February.
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A.  MAYOR' S COMMENTS

Mayor Frost reported Public Works has been working on the brine solution.  Since it has not snowed this
year, they haven' t had the opportunity to test it yet.

He also reported that two new businesses would be coming into the Town in the near future. They will be
located at the underpass near Subway.
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sweethearts residing in Mount CarmeL Light refreshments, live entertainment and door prizes.   
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i

INDEPGNDENT AUDITOR' S REPORT

t

To the Board of Mayor and Aldermen

fown of Mount Carmel i

Mount C rmel, Tennessee

i

Report on the Financial Statements i
I

I have audited Che accompanying financial statemenCs of the governmental activities, the business- type i
j activities, each major funcl, and the aggregate remaining fund infonnation of the Town of Mo mt Carmei,    

Tennessee, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial stateinents,    

which collectively comprise the Town' s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.     

Management' s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
s

Management is responsible for the prepaiation and fair presentation of these financial statements in

accordance with accounting rinciples generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, iinpleil entation, and inaintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair

i presentation of tinancial statements that are free fiom inaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.    
i

Auditor' s Responsibility
i

My responsibility is to espress opinions on these tinancial statements based on my audit. I conductetl my
S audit in accorclance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the

standards applicable to tinancial audits containecl in Goverrm tent Audiling St mdnrds,  issued by the
Coinptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that I plan and perfonn the audit to i

j obtain reasonable assurance about whether the tinancial statements are free from material misstatement

i
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

3 tinancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor' s judgment, including the assessment
of the risl: s of material inisstatement of the financial statements, whetl er due to fraud or error. In making I

those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity' s preparation and fair i
presentation of the tinancial stateinents in order to design audiC procedures that are app ropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of es ressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity' s internal
control. Accordingly, I e press no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness ot signiticanC aeeounting estimates made by management,    
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the tinancial statements.     li
I believe tl at d e audiC evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to rovide a basis for my

I

audit opinions. 

Opinions
i

In my opiniun, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective tinancial position of the governmental activities, the business- ty e activities, eacl ina,jor fiind,    
and the aggregate reinainin fund information of the Town oi' Mount Carmel, Tennessee, as of J me 30,    
3014, and the respective ehanges in tinancial position, where applicable, cash flows thereof, and the

Leighton House •  132 Depot Street West • Greeneville, Tennessee 37743

i 423) 787- 0855 • Fax ( 423) 639- 0124
I

i



i

respective buclgetaiy comparison tor the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in tl e Uniteci States of America.   

s I
Other Matters

Regzdred Suyplen2entary Lzforuzalion
I

y Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management' s I

discussion and nalysis and schedule of funding progress on pages 3- 9 1nd 43 be presented to supplement I

the basic fuiancial statements. Such inPormation, although not a par[ of the basic tinancial statements, is I

required by the Governmental Accountin Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential art of I

tinancial reporting for placind the basic financial statements in an appro riate operational, economic, or
historic l context I have applied certain limited procedures to the req iired supplementaiy infonnation in
accordance with auditing standards aenerally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of li
inquiries of m n geinent nbout the methods of preparing the information and comparing the infonroation I

for consistency - vith management' s responses to my inquiries, the basic tinancial statements, and other
knowlecige I obt ined durin my audit of Yhe basic financi l statements. I do not ex ress an opinion or i

s provide anv assurance on the intorination because the limited procedures do not provide me with sufticienC
I

evitlence to e ress an opinion or provide any assurance.       

Ulfter Ir7Jorn iut ior7 I,

i

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town of Mount Carmel, Tennessee' s basic financill statements.   The combining and
individual nonmajor fund tinancial statements and other suppleinenta y information are presented for

t purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

a
The combinin, nd individual nonmajor fund tinancial statements and other supplementary information

re the responsibiliry of management and were cierived from and related directly ro the unciertying i
accountin and other records used to prepare the basic tinancial statements.   Such information has been

sul jected to the a iditing proeedures applied in d e audit of the basic tinai cial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and recoiiciling such infmmation directly to the underlying

t

k accounting and other records used to prep re the basic financial statements or ro the basic financial
stateinents themselves, and other additional rocedures in accordance with auditing standards ge erally

F

ccepted in the United States of America.  In my opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund i

financial statements and other supplementary information are fairly st2ted in II inaterial respects in
t relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

i
Other Reporting Required by Govern nerit Auduing Stundarrls I

I
In accordance with Governm r _ 9uditirl. Sia adurds, I have also issued my report dated December I6,      
2014, on my consideration of the Town of Mount Carmel, " I' ennessee' s internal control over financial
reporting and on my tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and i
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of iny testing of
internal control over tinancial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide

an opinion on internal conh ol over tinancial re orting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an udit perforn ed in accordance with Gm errimenl . 4ucfi[ in; S andcrrds in consitlering the Town of i

Mount Carmel. Tennessee' s inteinal control over tinanci il re ortingan i compliance.      
I

i
I

David M. Ellis, CPA

Greeneville. Tennessee

December I6. ' Ola
i

I

i

I
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full

understanding of the data provided in the government- wide and fund financial statements.

Required & Other Supplementary Information
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, additional supplementary
information can be found in sections of this report.

S
Government- Wide Financial Analysis

The Town presents its financial statements under the reporting model required by the
Govemmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No.  34  ( GASB34),  Basic Financial
Statements- and ManagemenYs Discussion and Analysis ( MD  &  A)  -  for state and local

governments.

z As noted earlier, net position changes over time serves as a useful indicator of the Town' s

financial position. In the case of the Town, its overall net position increased $ 346, 522 in the

current year.      I

The largest portion of the Town' s net position ( 63%) reflects its investment in capital assets( e. g.,     
land, buildin s infrastructure sewer s stem lant lines swimmin ool and e ui ment • lessB   Y P    ,       ,    BP 9 P      ),

any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The Town uses these capital
4 assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future

spending. Although the Town' s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it
d should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided for from other

sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.   I
I

The second largest portion net position consists of unrestricted net position ( 34%) and this may
be used to meet the Town' s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.    

I

An additional portion of the Town' s net position ( 3%) represents resources that aze subject to I

external restriction on how they may be used.     

R
f The Town of Mount Carmel' s net position and changes in net position are presented below:     

I
I

2 I

3
I

I

9
I

a

4 i
I

r

I
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I
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p10
j Go ernmental Actitides Business- Type Actihfies Total

2014        2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Re xnue

Charges forServices 223, 155  $   244, 793  $   776, 1ll  $   782, 948  $    999,266  $  1, 027,741

Operating(} ants/ Contnbutions 179, 266 194, 104 179,266 194, 704

Capital(] rents/ Contributions 13, 342 1, 427 259,991 189,061 273, 333 19Q488

1 PropeRy Taxes 1, 109, 114 1, 114,366 1, 109, 114 1, 114, 366

Local Sales Ta c 320, 694 300,499 320, 694 300,499

OtherTaxes 19, 629 118, 824 119, 629 ll8, 824 I

Intergovemmental SI2, 440 506, 427 512, 440 506,427

Other 22, 061 27, 3& 1 1, 018 1, 540 23, 139 28, 924 IF
Total Revenue 2, 499,701 2, 508, 424 1, 037, 180 973, 549 3, 536, 881 3, 481, 973

9 N penses

Genernl Govemroent 121, 243 129, 949 121, 243 129, 949
I

r FinanciaVAdmiuistration 31Q657 336, 938 310, 657 336, 938 I
Public Safety- Police/ Fire 718, 894 744, 811 718,894 744, 811

Drug Fund Operations 2, 000 37,943 2, 000 37, 943 i
Animal Control 34, 706 34,044 34, 706 34, 044

Bu 7ding Inspection 29,027 26,770 29,027 26,770

Highways& Streets 92Q949 683, 266 92Q949 683, 266

Solid Waste• Sanitation 214, 973 212, 627 214, 973 212, 627

Recreation 57, 096 47,423 57,096 47,423 li
Lbrary 40, 009 41, 673 4D, 009 41, 6"73 I

Mamtenance I
nterest- Gov. Activity Debt 491 1, 947 491 1, 947 i

SewerOperations/ DebtService 140, 314 674, 611 740, 314 614, 611

Total F penses 2, 45Q045 2, 297,391 14Q314 674,6ll 3, 190, 359 2, 972, 002 i,

Change in Net Pasition 49, 656 211, 033 296, 866 298, 938 346, 522 509, 971 j
BeginningNetPosition 4, 981, 049 4, 77Q016 5, 750, 166 5, 451, 228 10, 731, 215 10, 221, 244

f

Fh3ng Net Positian S 5, 030, 705 S 4, 981, 049  $ 6,047, 032 S 5, 750, 166  $ 11, 077, 737 S10, 731, 215

ii

I

Financial Analysis of the Town' s Funds
A

I
As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance- related legal requirements.  

iGovernmental Fands
The focus of the Town' s govemmental funds is to provide information on the near- term inflows,

outflows, and balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing the IITown' s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balances may serve as a useful

Imeasure of a governmenYs net resources available for spending in the next fiscal year.   

i
At the end of the current fiscal yeaz, the Towns' govemmental funds reported combined ending I,

fund balances of $2, 733, 657. In the govemmental funds revenues and other sources totaled

2, 504, 011 while expenditures totaled $ 2, 402, 797 resulting in a $ 101, 214 increase to fund
g balance. At June 30, 2014, 95% of the govemmental fund balances were unassigned.     iJ

With respect to the General Fund, the overall fund balance increased $ 97, 004.     

i
S 1

rj I
I

g I
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i7
Proprietary Funds
The Town maintains one proprietary fund being the Sewer Fund and in the current year, the
Sewer Fund had an increase in net position of$ 296, 866 with$ 259, 991 of the increase relating to

i a capital grant for sewer improvements.

1

General Fund Budgetary Highiights
a

The Town made revisions to its original budget approved by the Town Council. Overall these
gchanges resulted in a $ 63, 929 increase in budgeted revenues and $ 63, 929 increase in budgeted

expenditures.  Actual revenues exceeded final budgeted revenues by  $ 207, 904 and actual
expenditures were below final budgeted expenditures by$ 582, 190.

Capitai Assets
s

The Town' s investment in capital assets for its govemmental and business- type activities as of
June 30, 2014, totaled $ 8, 253, 059 ( net of accumulated depreciation). The investment in capital

assets includes land, buildings, equipment, improvements, infrastructure, and sewer plant and

lines. A summary of the capital assets are as follows:
i

Governmental ActiHHes Business- Type Activities Total

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Capital Assets

a
Land 126, 927  $   ll0,927  $   167, 190  $   167, 190  $   294, 117  $   278, 117

Constmction in Progress 195, 304 195, 304

Buildings/ Improvemnts 597, 115 591, 644 597, ll5 591, 644

Machinery/ Fquipment/ Vehicles 1, 771, 378 1, 725, 200 588, 944 588, 944 2, 360, 322 2, 314, 144

Infiastructure 3, 907, 153 3, 907, 153 3, 907, 153 3, 9(17, 153
a

Ut ity Plant& Lines 10, 473, 188 9, 962, 842 10, 473, 188 9,962,842

Library 115, 205 ll5, 205 115, 205 ll5,205

Total Captal Assetc 6,517, 778 6,45Q129 11, 229, 322 10, 914,280 17, 747, 100 17,364,409

Iess: AccumulatedDepreciation   ( 4,27Q721)    ( 4, 14Q212)   ( 5, 223, 320)    ( 4,99G,955)   ( 9,494,041)   ( 9, 137, 16'       

Total Captal Assets( net)    S 2, 247, 057 S 2, 309,917  $ 6, 006,002  $ Sy17, 325 S 8, 253, 059 S 8, 227, 242 I

i During the cunent year, in the governmental activities area, the Town had $ 141, 291 in new I

y capital asset additions and the Sewer Fund had$ 510, 346 in new capital asset additions.  
I

j Debt Administration I

For the year ending June 30, 2014, the Town issued $ 545, 000 in refunding bonds to currently I'

refund a previous sewer bond issue in order to take advantage of market interest rates. There were

no new capital outlay notes issued in the current year. A summary of the outstanding debt is
I

presented below: I

zGo rnmental Business-Type

Activities Activities
Total

I

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 I
Bonds Payable 1, 223, 686  $  1, 357, 715  $  1, 223, 686  $  1, 357, 715

k Capital 0utlay Notes 11, 394 26,530 52, 076 26, 530 63, 470

Total Outstanding Debt    $    -     $ 11, 394  $ 1, 250, 216  $ 1, 409, 791  $ 1, 250, 216  $ 1, 421, 185

I
I

8 I
i

y i

i I
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Economic Factors& Next Year' s Budgets & Rates

AThe Town' s elected and appointed officials consider many factors when setting the fisca12014- 15
budget including tax rates and fees that will be charged for business- type activities. Mount
Carmel adjoins the city limits of Kingsport, Tennessee. As a result, a majority of the Towns'
residents are employed in the Kingsport area as Mount Carmel has no major industries in its

boundaries and sales tax revenues are primarily dependent on one major lumber company. For the
year ending 2014- 2015, the Town for its General Fund budgeted $ 2, 056, 586 in revenues and i

i 2, 317, 777 in expenditures with the difference being provided by accumulated fund balance from I

the prior years and the property tax rate remained $ 138 per $ 100 of assessed value on real and
s personal property. There were no proposed changes in the sewer rates for the enterprise fund.   

ii
Contacting the Town' s Financial Management I

I

This report is designed to provide those interested with a general overview of the Towds

finances. If you have questions about this report or need additional information, contact the City
Recorder at the Town of Mount Carmel, Mount Carmel, Tennessee.
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TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

NNE 3Q 2014

Governmental Business- Type

ASSETS Activities Activities Total

Current Assets

Cash& Cash Equivalents 2, 647, 424   $ 97Q283   $    3, 617, 707

Taxes Receivable 1, 187,089 1, 187,089

Intergovernmental Receivables 168, 224 168, 224

Receivables( net) 22,973 130, 603 153, 576

j Inventory 27, 791 48, 043 75, 834

x Restricted Assets

Cash& Cash Equivalents 35, 512 166,456 201, 968 I

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated I

Land 126, 927 167, 190 294, t 17

Construction in Progress

Capital Assets Net of Depreciation
i

Buildings 124,018 124,018 li
Sewer System 5, 838, 812 5, 838, 812

Equipment and Other 1, 996, 112 1, 996, ll2 I

Total Assets 6, 336,070 7, 321, 387 13, 657, 457 I
i

I

t DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES IIDeferred Charge on Refunding 17, 237 17, 237

j Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 17, 237 17, 237

t

LIABILITIES j
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable 148,016 28, 955 176, 971

AccruedExpenses 28,823 7,295 36, 118

Customer Deposits 290 290

Noncurrent Liabilities I

Due within one yeaz 28, 842 183, 265 212, 107 I

Due in more than one year 1, 071, 787 1, 071, 787 I
Total Liabilities 205, 681 1, 291, 592 1, 497, 273

I
i i
i DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Current Property Taxes 1, 099, 684 1, 099, 684

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 1, 099, 684 1, 099, 684

1

NET POSITION I

Net Investment in Capital Assets 2, 247, 057 4, 755,786 7, 002, 843

Restricted

Debt Service 166, 456 166,456

State Street Aid 70, 917 70, 917

Drug Operarions 35, 512 35, 512

Unrestricted 2, 677, 219 1, 124, 790 3, 802, 009

Total Net Position 5,030,705   $      6,047,032   $   11, 077,737

i
I

s

I
i

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.    i
10 j
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j Go ernmental Actitides Business- Type Actihfies Total

2014        2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Re xnue

Charges forServices 223, 155  $   244, 793  $   776, 1ll  $   782, 948  $    999,266  $  1, 027,741

Operating(} ants/ Contnbutions 179, 266 194, 104 179,266 194, 704

Capital(] rents/ Contributions 13, 342 1, 427 259,991 189,061 273, 333 19Q488

1 PropeRy Taxes 1, 109, 114 1, 114,366 1, 109, 114 1, 114, 366

Local Sales Ta c 320, 694 300,499 320, 694 300,499

OtherTaxes 19, 629 118, 824 119, 629 ll8, 824 I

Intergovemmental SI2, 440 506, 427 512, 440 506,427
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Total Revenue 2, 499,701 2, 508, 424 1, 037, 180 973, 549 3, 536, 881 3, 481, 973

9 N penses

Genernl Govemroent 121, 243 129, 949 121, 243 129, 949
I

r FinanciaVAdmiuistration 31Q657 336, 938 310, 657 336, 938 I
Public Safety- Police/ Fire 718, 894 744, 811 718,894 744, 811

Drug Fund Operations 2, 000 37,943 2, 000 37, 943 i
Animal Control 34, 706 34,044 34, 706 34, 044

Bu 7ding Inspection 29,027 26,770 29,027 26,770

Highways& Streets 92Q949 683, 266 92Q949 683, 266

Solid Waste• Sanitation 214, 973 212, 627 214, 973 212, 627

Recreation 57, 096 47,423 57,096 47,423 li
Lbrary 40, 009 41, 673 4D, 009 41, 6"73 I

Mamtenance I
nterest- Gov. Activity Debt 491 1, 947 491 1, 947 i

SewerOperations/ DebtService 140, 314 674, 611 740, 314 614, 611

Total F penses 2, 45Q045 2, 297,391 14Q314 674,6ll 3, 190, 359 2, 972, 002 i,

Change in Net Pasition 49, 656 211, 033 296, 866 298, 938 346, 522 509, 971 j
BeginningNetPosition 4, 981, 049 4, 77Q016 5, 750, 166 5, 451, 228 10, 731, 215 10, 221, 244

f

Fh3ng Net Positian S 5, 030, 705 S 4, 981, 049  $ 6,047, 032 S 5, 750, 166  $ 11, 077, 737 S10, 731, 215

ii

I

Financial Analysis of the Town' s Funds
A

I
As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance- related legal requirements.  

iGovernmental Fands
The focus of the Town' s govemmental funds is to provide information on the near- term inflows,

outflows, and balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing the IITown' s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balances may serve as a useful

Imeasure of a governmenYs net resources available for spending in the next fiscal year.   

i
At the end of the current fiscal yeaz, the Towns' govemmental funds reported combined ending I,

fund balances of $2, 733, 657. In the govemmental funds revenues and other sources totaled

2, 504, 011 while expenditures totaled $ 2, 402, 797 resulting in a $ 101, 214 increase to fund
g balance. At June 30, 2014, 95% of the govemmental fund balances were unassigned.     iJ

With respect to the General Fund, the overall fund balance increased $ 97, 004.     
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i7
Proprietary Funds
The Town maintains one proprietary fund being the Sewer Fund and in the current year, the
Sewer Fund had an increase in net position of$ 296, 866 with$ 259, 991 of the increase relating to

i a capital grant for sewer improvements.

1

General Fund Budgetary Highiights
a

The Town made revisions to its original budget approved by the Town Council. Overall these
gchanges resulted in a $ 63, 929 increase in budgeted revenues and $ 63, 929 increase in budgeted

expenditures.  Actual revenues exceeded final budgeted revenues by  $ 207, 904 and actual
expenditures were below final budgeted expenditures by$ 582, 190.

Capitai Assets
s

The Town' s investment in capital assets for its govemmental and business- type activities as of
June 30, 2014, totaled $ 8, 253, 059 ( net of accumulated depreciation). The investment in capital

assets includes land, buildings, equipment, improvements, infrastructure, and sewer plant and

lines. A summary of the capital assets are as follows:
i

Governmental ActiHHes Business- Type Activities Total

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Capital Assets

a
Land 126, 927  $   ll0,927  $   167, 190  $   167, 190  $   294, 117  $   278, 117

Constmction in Progress 195, 304 195, 304

Buildings/ Improvemnts 597, 115 591, 644 597, ll5 591, 644

Machinery/ Fquipment/ Vehicles 1, 771, 378 1, 725, 200 588, 944 588, 944 2, 360, 322 2, 314, 144

Infiastructure 3, 907, 153 3, 907, 153 3, 907, 153 3, 9(17, 153
a

Ut ity Plant& Lines 10, 473, 188 9, 962, 842 10, 473, 188 9,962,842

Library 115, 205 ll5, 205 115, 205 ll5,205

Total Captal Assetc 6,517, 778 6,45Q129 11, 229, 322 10, 914,280 17, 747, 100 17,364,409

Iess: AccumulatedDepreciation   ( 4,27Q721)    ( 4, 14Q212)   ( 5, 223, 320)    ( 4,99G,955)   ( 9,494,041)   ( 9, 137, 16'       

Total Captal Assets( net)    S 2, 247, 057 S 2, 309,917  $ 6, 006,002  $ Sy17, 325 S 8, 253, 059 S 8, 227, 242 I

i During the cunent year, in the governmental activities area, the Town had $ 141, 291 in new I

y capital asset additions and the Sewer Fund had$ 510, 346 in new capital asset additions.  
I

j Debt Administration I

For the year ending June 30, 2014, the Town issued $ 545, 000 in refunding bonds to currently I'

refund a previous sewer bond issue in order to take advantage of market interest rates. There were

no new capital outlay notes issued in the current year. A summary of the outstanding debt is
I

presented below: I

zGo rnmental Business-Type

Activities Activities
Total

I

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 I
Bonds Payable 1, 223, 686  $  1, 357, 715  $  1, 223, 686  $  1, 357, 715

k Capital 0utlay Notes 11, 394 26,530 52, 076 26, 530 63, 470

Total Outstanding Debt    $    -     $ 11, 394  $ 1, 250, 216  $ 1, 409, 791  $ 1, 250, 216  $ 1, 421, 185
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Economic Factors& Next Year' s Budgets & Rates

AThe Town' s elected and appointed officials consider many factors when setting the fisca12014- 15
budget including tax rates and fees that will be charged for business- type activities. Mount
Carmel adjoins the city limits of Kingsport, Tennessee. As a result, a majority of the Towns'
residents are employed in the Kingsport area as Mount Carmel has no major industries in its

boundaries and sales tax revenues are primarily dependent on one major lumber company. For the
year ending 2014- 2015, the Town for its General Fund budgeted $ 2, 056, 586 in revenues and i

i 2, 317, 777 in expenditures with the difference being provided by accumulated fund balance from I

the prior years and the property tax rate remained $ 138 per $ 100 of assessed value on real and
s personal property. There were no proposed changes in the sewer rates for the enterprise fund.   

ii
Contacting the Town' s Financial Management I

I

This report is designed to provide those interested with a general overview of the Towds

finances. If you have questions about this report or need additional information, contact the City
Recorder at the Town of Mount Carmel, Mount Carmel, Tennessee.
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TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

NNE 3Q 2014

Governmental Business- Type

ASSETS Activities Activities Total

Current Assets

Cash& Cash Equivalents 2, 647, 424   $ 97Q283   $    3, 617, 707

Taxes Receivable 1, 187,089 1, 187,089

Intergovernmental Receivables 168, 224 168, 224

Receivables( net) 22,973 130, 603 153, 576

j Inventory 27, 791 48, 043 75, 834

x Restricted Assets

Cash& Cash Equivalents 35, 512 166,456 201, 968 I

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated I

Land 126, 927 167, 190 294, t 17

Construction in Progress

Capital Assets Net of Depreciation
i

Buildings 124,018 124,018 li
Sewer System 5, 838, 812 5, 838, 812

Equipment and Other 1, 996, 112 1, 996, ll2 I

Total Assets 6, 336,070 7, 321, 387 13, 657, 457 I
i

I

t DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES IIDeferred Charge on Refunding 17, 237 17, 237

j Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 17, 237 17, 237

t

LIABILITIES j
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable 148,016 28, 955 176, 971

AccruedExpenses 28,823 7,295 36, 118

Customer Deposits 290 290

Noncurrent Liabilities I

Due within one yeaz 28, 842 183, 265 212, 107 I

Due in more than one year 1, 071, 787 1, 071, 787 I
Total Liabilities 205, 681 1, 291, 592 1, 497, 273

I
i i
i DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Current Property Taxes 1, 099, 684 1, 099, 684

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 1, 099, 684 1, 099, 684

1

NET POSITION I

Net Investment in Capital Assets 2, 247, 057 4, 755,786 7, 002, 843

Restricted

Debt Service 166, 456 166,456

State Street Aid 70, 917 70, 917

Drug Operarions 35, 512 35, 512

Unrestricted 2, 677, 219 1, 124, 790 3, 802, 009

Total Net Position 5,030,705   $      6,047,032   $   11, 077,737

i
I
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I
i

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.    i
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TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year ended June 30, 2014

PROGRAM REVENUES

Charges for Operating Grants&  Capital Grants&    Net( Expense) Governmental Business- Type
Functions/ Pro rams Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Revenue Activities Activities Total

Primary Government
Governmental Activities:

General Govemment 121, 243      $    20, 761   $  100, 482)
Financial& Administration 310, 657 310, 657)

Public Safety- Police/ Fire 718, 894 135, 780 32, 135 13, 342 537, 637)

Drug Fund Operations 2, 000 32, 828 30, 828
Animal Control 34,706 1, 404 33, 302)

Building Inspection 29, 027 7, 751 21, 276)

Highways& Streets 920,949 24,631 140, 992 755, 326)

Solid Waste/ Sanitation 214,973 214, 973)

Recreation 57, 096 450 56, 646)

Library 40, 009 5, 689 34, 320)

Maintenance

Interest on Long-Term Debt 491 491)

Total Govemmental Activities 2, 450, 045 223, 155 179, 266 13, 342 2, 034, 282)

Business- Type Activities:

Sewer 740, 314 776, 111 259, 991 295, 788

Total Business- Type Activities 740, 314 776, 111 259, 991 295, 788

Total Primary Government       $ 3, 190, 359     $  999, 266  $     179, 266   $ 273, 333      $  ( 1, 738, 494)

Change in Net Position 2 034 282) 295' 78S     ( 1 735 494)

General Revenues

Property Taxes 1, 109, 114 1, 109, 114
Local Option Sales Tax 32Q694 320, 694
Franchise Tazces 70, 874 70, 874
Beer Ta ces 48, 755 48, 755
Intergovemmental 512, 440 512, 440
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets 8, 923 8, 923
Interest Income 5, 771 1, 078 6, 849
Miscellaneous 7, 367 7, 367

Totat General Revenues 2, 083, 938 1, 078 2, 085, 016

Increase( Decrease) in Net Position 49, 656 296,866 346,522
Net Position- Beginning 4, 981, 049 5, 750, 166 10, 731, 215
Net Position- Ending 5,030,705   $   6, 047, 032   $  11, 077,737

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral paR of this statement.
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t i

TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE i

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

p June 30, 2014 j

Other Total

General Fund Governmental Governmental

Fund Funds i

ASSETS

Cash& Cash Equivalents 2, 647, 424   $  35, 512   $     2, 682, 936

Taxes Receivable 1, 187, 089 1, 187, 089 I

Accounts Receivable 22, 973 22, 973
I!

z Intergovemmental Receivables 168,224 168,224 I

Inventory 27, 791 27, 791 I

Total Assets 4, 053,501   $  35, 512   $     4,089,013
t

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 148, 016 148, 016

Accrued Expenses i

Accrued Salaries& Benefits 28, 823 28, 823 1

Customer Deposits I
Totat Liabilities 176, 839 176, 839 I

4 DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Defened Current Property Taxes 1, 099, 684 1, 099, 684 j
Deferred Delinquent Properry Taxes 78, 833 78, 833 i

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 1, 178, 517 1, 178, 517

1
o FUND BALANCES

Non- spendable 27, 791 27, 791
j

Committed

Assigned

Restricted 70, 917 35, 512 106, 429

Unassigned 2, 599, 437 2, 599, 437

Total Fund Balances 2, 698, 145 35, 512 2, 733, 657 i
i
R Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 4, 053, 501   $  35, 512   $     4, 089, 013

i

i
i

1

i
i

t
i
i

i
1>      

r

I
i

i I
The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement. I
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TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE
f RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO STATEMENT OF NET POSTTION
s

i JiTNE 30, 2014
i

i

Y

Total Fund Balances- Governmental Funds 2, 733, 657
t

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets
l are different because:
3

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not cunent financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the Governmental Fund. 2, 247, 057

Long-term liabilities aze not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the Governmental Funds.

a

Due within one year:      28, 842

Due in more than one year:   

28, 842 28, 842)fi

Unearned revenue is not recognized on property taxes in the Governmental
Funds, as it is not available within the time period.  78, 833

Net Position of Governmental Activities 5, 030, 705

i

3

3

7i
Yy

py1

d I

E}

I
S

a

III
Yt I

i

1 i

7 i

49 i

I
3 I

i
4 i
i

9t̂

i

I

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENLTES, EXPENDITURES,&

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO

THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Net Change in Fund Balances- Total Governmental Funds 101, 214

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities

are different because:

Govemmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the
government- wide Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position, the

cost of those assets is allocated over the estimated useful lives and reported as

3 depreciation expense. This is the amount of capital assets purchased in the

current period.     141, 291

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the government- wide

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position but does not require the

use of cunent financial resources. Therefore, depreciation expense is not
a

reported as an expenditure in Governmental Funds.      193, 109)

The issuance of long- term debt provides current financial resources to
govemmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither

transaction, however, has an effect on net position. This amount is the net
F

effect of these differences in the treatment of long- term debt. $ SQ000 is the

principal paid on debt in the current year. New debt issues totaled $ 0.  11, 394

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the

use of current financial resources; therefore, they are not reported as
expenditures in Governmental Funds. Change in compensated absence

accrual.       6, 824)

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide cuttent

financial resources are not reported as revenues in the Governmental Funds.

Property ta ces-$ 6, 732.    6, 732

Gain on sale of capital assets is reported in the govemment- wide Statement

t of Activities and Changes in Net Position while the Governmental Funds only
recognize the total sales and not the gain or loss. Thus, the net book value is

deducted on capital assets.      11, 042)

i
i

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 49, 656
t

t

i
s

i

2
i

7

i
3

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF MOUNT CAR.MEL, TENNESSEE li
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PR{) PRIETARY FTIND

June 30, 2Q14

SEWER FIJND i

ASSETS I

CurrenY AsseYs

Cash c Cash Equivalents 970, 283

Accounts Receivable( net)       130,603

Inventory 48,043

Noncnrrent& Restricted Assets

Cash& Cash EGuivalents 166,456

x Utility Plant 8c Eguipment( net)      6, OR6, Q02

Total Assets 7, 321, 387

FF
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCE3

3 Defened Charge an Refunfling 7, 237

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 17,237

s

LIABTLTTIES
i

Current Liabilities

Aeconnts Payable& Acare ed Liabilities 28, 9

Accrued Interest 2 289

iAccrued Salarias& Benefits 5, 006

Accrued Campensated Absances- carrent 4, 836

Customer Deposits gd
F

Capital Qutlay Notes Payable- current 2 530

Bonds T' ayable- current 151,& 99

Noncurrent Liabilities

Capital Outlay Notes Payable
Bands Payable 1, d71, 787

Tata1 Liabiiities 1, 292, 592

NET POSITION

Net Investments In Capital Assets 4, 755, 786

Restricted for Debt Service 16b, 456

Unrestrictad 1, 124, 740
E

Total Net Position 6, 047, 032

E

Ft

The accoinpanying notes Ca financiai statements are an integral part of this statement.
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i

TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENIJES, EXPENSES,& CFIANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 i
SEWER FUND

OPERATING REVENUE
I',

g Charges for Services 776, ll 1

3 Total Operating Revenue 776, 111

OPERATING EXPENSE

Personnel Services 171, 016

Materials& Supplies 7, 936

l Repairs& Maintenance 131, 250

Contractual Services 41, 595

Utilities& Telephone 72, 665

Insurance 14, 089

General Expenses 27, 546

Depreciation 226, 365

Total Operating Expense 692, 462

i

Income( Loss) from Operatious 83, 649
t

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE)

t Interest Income 1, 078

Bond Issue Expenses 8, 000)

Interest Expense 39, 852)

Total Nonoperating Revenue ( Expense) 46, 774)

EF

Income Before Contributions 36,875

Capital Grants 259, 991

Change in Net Position 296, 866

NET POSITION- BEGINNING 5, 750, 166

NET POSITION- ENDING 6, 047, 032

x

3

i

i

5

1

Y

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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y

TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

j SEWER FUND

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
t Cash Received from Customers 777, 997t

q Cash Payments for Supplies/ Services 363, 807)

r Cash Payments to Employees/ Personnel 170, 854)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 243, 336
t

r

Cas6 Flows from Capita(& Related Financing Activities
Purchases of Capital Assets 315, 042)

Issuance of Refunding Bonds 545, 000

Retirement of Debt 704,575)
Debt Issue Expenses on Refunding Bonds 8, 000)

Interest Paid on Debt 35, 512)

Capital Grants Received 292, 396

Net Cash Provided by( Used for) Capital & Related

Financing Activities 225, 733)

a

a Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Interest Income 1, 078

Net Increase( Decrease) in Cas6 & Cash Equivalents 18, 681

Cash & Cash Equivalents- Beginning 1, 118, 058

Cash & Cash Equivalents- Ending 1, 136, 739
a
3

i

Reconciliation of Income from Operations to Net Cash

s`,  Provided by( Used for) Operating Activities
Income from Operations 83, 649

A

Adjustments to Reconcile Iacome from Operations to Net

Cash Provided by( Used for) Operating Activities
Depreciation 226, 365

Increase) Decrease in:

Accounts Receivable 1, 886

a Inventory 589)

Increase( Decrease) in:

Accounts Payable& Accrued Liabilities 67,975)

Net Cash Provided by( Used for) Operating Activities 243, 336

Reconciliation of Total Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash& Cash Equivale ts 970, 283

Restricted Cash& Cash Equivalents 166, 456

Total Cash & Cash Equivalents 1, 136, 739

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,& CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BTJDGET& ACTUAir

GENERAL FUND

z For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

t Budgeted Amounts Vaziance with Final

Original Final Actual
Budget- Positive

Negative)

REVENUE

Taaes

Property Ta ces 1, 039, 592   $   1, 039, 592   $   1, 092, 317   $      52, 725
Interest& Penalties- Taxes 10, 000 10, 000 10, 065 65

Local Option Sales Tax 250, 000 281, 060 320, 694 39,634

Wholesale Beer Taac 30, 000 30, 000 48, 755 18, 755

Cable TV Franchise Tax 53, 000 53, 000 70, 874 17, 874

s Total Taxes 1, 382, 592 1, 413, 652 1, 542, 705 129, 053

Intergovernmental Revenae

State Sales Ta c 345, 000 345, 000 387, 880 42, 880

State Income Tax 2, 500 2, 500 I 1, 059 8, 559

State Beer Tax 2, 500 2, 500 2, 569 69

State Street Aid 138, 000 138, 000 140, 992 2, 992i
State Gas Taac 10, 000 1Q000 11, 236 1, 236

TVA in Lieu 58, 000 58, 000 95, 541 37, 541

A State Pay Supplement 4, 200 4, 200 3, 600 600)

Telecommunication Tax 350 350 555 205

r FederaVState/ Other Grants 40, 890 44, 009 19, 210 24, 799)

t Total Intergovernmental Revenue 601, 440 604, 559 672, 642 68, 083

Charges for Services
s

i State Highway Services I5, 000 15, 000 24, 631 9, 631

RentalIncome 22, 536 22, 536 20, 661 1, 875)

3 Training Classes/ Other 500 500 500)

Wrecker Services 200 200 100 100)

Total Charges for Services 38, 236 38, 236 45, 392 7, 156

Fines & Forfeitures

City Court Fines 85, 000 85, 000 85, 694 694

County Court Fines 6, 000 6, 000 5, 691 309)
i

Animal Control 500 500 1, 404 904i
Speed Enforcement 45, 000 45, 000 44, 395 605)

Total Fines & Forfeitures 136, 500 136, 500 137, 184 684

Licenses & Permits
3

Building Permits 6, 000 6, 000 7, 751 1, 751

i Total Licenses & Permits 6, 000 6, 000 7, 751 1, 751

Ot6er Revenue

Interest Income 660 660 5, 699 5, 039

Donations/ Other 20, 200 29, 950 32, 406 2, 456

Miscellaneous 13, 650 33, 650 7, 367 26, 283)

Surplus Sales 19, 965 19, 965

7 Total Other Revenue 34, 510 64, 260 65, 437 1, 177

TOTAL REVENUES 2, 199, 278   $   2, 263, 207   $   2, 471, ll1   $    207, 904
i

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,& CHANGES IN FiTND BALANCE

BUDGET& ACTUAL-

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

udgeted Amounts Vaziance with Final

Original Finat Actual
Budget- Positive

Negative)

EXPENDITURES

General Government

Election Expense

Dues 1, 600 1, 600 1, 517 83

Senior Citizens 36, 000 36, 000 36, 000

Utilities 13, 000 13, 000 12, 652 348

Telephone 4, 500 4, 510 4, 506 4

Engineering 15, 000 15, 000 1, 100 13, 900

Insurance 51, 000 51, 000 42, 267 8, 733

Reappraisal Cost 6, 500 6, 490 5, 895 595

Safety Program 3, 000 3, 000 2, 422 578

Bank Charges 100 100 100

i First T' N Dev. District 1, 110 1, 110 1, 110

a First TN Human Resources 2, 000 2, 000 2, 000

Of One Accord Donation 1, 000 1, 000 1, 000

CapitalOutlay 20, 000 16, 000 4, 000

Chamber of Commerce 2, 500 2, 500 2, 500

Total General Government 137, 310 157, 310 128, 969 28, 341

Financial & Administration

Salazies 171, 600 171, 700 166, 792 4, 908

Payroll Taxes 13, 450 13, 450 12, 297 1, 153

Health Insurance 23, 000 23, 000 20, 792 2, 208

Retirement 20, 000 20, 000 17, 248 2, 752

Worker' s Compensation Ins.   1, 500 1, 500 536 964

Training 3, 000 3, 700 3, 015 685

Internet& Web Services 1, 280 1, 350 889 461

Cable TV Channel 72 72 72

Housing Authority 1, 000

Advertising 1, 200 4, 550 3, 903 647

City 7udge 4, 800 4,800 4, 600 200

Medical Services 200 200 175 25
i

Legal Services 20, 000 17,399 9, 368 8, 031
E

Accounting Services 21, 050 21, 050 17, 265 3, 785

Computer& Support 18, 000 18, 000 16, 585 1, 415

State Planning Fees 8, 400 8, 400 6, 300 2, 100

Repairs& Maintenance 15, 000 15, 000 8, 634 6, 366

Travel 3, 000 3, 000 395 2, 605

Tax Commission Fees 2, 500 2, 500 977 1, 523

Miscellaneous 5, 000 5, 000 3, 539 1, 461

r Contractual Fees 1, 200 1, 200 639 561

1 Office Expense& Supplies 15, 900 15, 900 12, 922 2, 978
t

3 CopierMaintenance/ Lease 1, 520 1, 520 1, 512 8
3

The accompanying notes to financial statements aze an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,& CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET & ACTUAL-

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Budgeted Amounts Variance with Final

Original Final Actual
Budget- Positive

Negative)

i CapitalOutlay 8, 850   $ 8, 850   $ 7, 745   $ 1, 105

Total Financial & Administration 361, 522 362, 141 316, 128 46,013

Public Safety- Police
Salaries/ Wages 309, 400 314, 600 280, 795 33, 805

Payroll Taxes 24, 720 24, 720 19, 910 4, 810

Health Insurance 80, 000 80, 000 55, 856 24, 144

Retirement 35, 000 35, 000 29, 291 5, 709

Worker' s Compensation Ins.       23, 000 23, 000 13, 706 9, 294

3 Training 3, 000 5, 000 4, 093 907

p Dues& E- Com Expense 900 900 452 448

Utilities/ Telephone 6, 500 6, 600 6, 588 12

Intemet Services 1, 300 1, 300 1, 141 159

Computer& Support 19, 200 19, 200 11, 937 7, 263

4 Medical Services 750 1, 050 1, 042 8

Towing Services 800 800 260 540

Travel 4, 000 4, 000 3, 844 156

Office Expense 5, 500 5, 500 4, 644 856

3 Operating Supplies 8, 000 7, 850 4, 309 3, 541

Child Restraint Seats

Clothing/ Uniforms 3, 600 5, 600 5, 345 255

Vehicle/ FuelExpense 53, 000 53, 000 33, 131 19, 869

CopierLease 1, 752 1, 752 1, 752

Miscellaneous/ Radio Expense 4, 200 4,200 467 3, 733

Department of Safety 15, 000 15, 000 9, 663 5, 337

Bullet Proof Vests 500 500 28 472

5 CapitalOutlay 40, 890 43, 690 10, 574 33, ll6

Training Classes 1, 000 1, 000 1, 000

Total Public Safety- Police 642, 012 654, 262 498, 828 155, 434

Public Safety- Fire
Salaries/ Wages 49, 000 49, 000 35, 714 13, 286

Payroll Taxes 4, 090 4, 090 2, 552 1, 538

Health Insurance 6, 000 6, 000 5, 342 658

Retirement 5, 800 5, 800 3, 920 1, 880

Worker' s Compensation Ins. 4, 800 4, 800 1, 576 3, 224

Training 2, 000 2, 000 754 1, 246

Internet Services

Dues 330 330 100 230

Public Relations 2, 000 2, 500 2, 417 83

Utilities/ Telephone 14, 800 14, 800 12, 323 2,477
i

Medical Services 1, 000 1, 000 211 789

Computer& Support 440 540 440 100
P

Repairs & Maintenance 10, 000 17,750 17, 734 16

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement:
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TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE

a
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, & CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET& ACTUAL-

GENERAL FUND

For t6e Year Ended June 30, 2014

Budgeted Amounts Variance with Final

Budget- Positive
Original Final Actual

Negative)

Travel 1, 200   $ 3, 700   $ 1, 983   $ 1, 717

1 OSHA Testing 3, 500 3, 500 1, 625 1, 875
a

Contractual Services 1, 400 1, 400 850 550

Office Expense/ Postage 2, 500 2, 500 2, 139 361

i Operating Supplies 5, 800 5, 800 4, 516 1, 284

Clothing/ Uniforms 2, 500 4, 550 4, 487 63

Vehicle/ Fuel Expense 29, 000 26, 550 23, 673 2, 877

Radio Expense 1, 500 1, 500 176 1, 324

Miscellaneous 1, 500 1, 500 84 1, 416

CapitalOutlay 26, 800 26, 100 24, 176 1, 924

Copier Maintenance

Total Public Safety- Fire 175, 960 185, 710 146, 792 38, 918

Total Public Safety 817, 972 839, 972 645, 620 194, 352

Animal Control
3

Salaries/ Wages 21, 500 21, 500 17, 498 4, 002

Payroll Taxes 1, 640 1, 640 1, 402 238

a Health Insurance

t Retirement 500 500 18 482

Worker' s Compensation Ins.   1, 400 1, 400 858 542

Training 250 830 775 55

i Dues 100 100 100
F

Utilities/ Telephone 2, 050 2, 050 1, 351 699

Intemet Services 550 550 480 70

Medical Services 800 1, 800 1, 488 312

F
Repairs & Maintenance 3, 500 3, 500 3, 039 461

Travel 400 2, 000 1, 619 381

Radio Expense

Office Expense 250 750 419 331

Operating Supplies 500 900 881 19

Animal Food Purchases 600 600 600

Clothing/ Uniforms 800 800 800

Vehicle Expense 3, 800 4, 500 4, 198 302

Miscellaneous 200 200 200

Total Animal Control 38, 840 43, 620 34, 026 9, 594

Building Inspection
Salaries/ Wages 22, 000 22,000 20, 395 1, 605

Payroll Taxes 1, 790 1, 790 1, 596 194
i
j Worker' s Compensation Ins.   1, 600 1, 600 1, 171 429

Training 600 600 75 525

Dues/ Fees 4, 200 4, 200 3, 640 560

Telephone 500 500 320 180

Travel 600 600 421 179

1 The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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a

TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,& CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET& ACTUAL-

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

a

Budgeted Amounts Variance with Final

Original Final Actual
Budget- Positive

Negative)

i Operating Supplies 800   $ 1, 400   $ 1, 371   $   29

Miscellaneous& Demolition 3, 100 2, 500 38 2, 462
Vehicle Expense 500 500 500

Total Building Inspection 35, 690 35, 690 29, 027 6, 663

Hig6ways & Streets

Salaries/ Wages 174, 000 174, 000 138, 619 35, 381

Payroll Taxes 13, 450 13, 450 9, 319 4, 131

Health Insurance 52, 000 51, 100 34, 363 16, 737

c
Retirement 20, 000 20, 000 16, 356 3, 644

i Worker' s Compensation Ins. 21, 000 21, 000 13, 846 7, 154

s Training 200 200 200

Utilities/ Telephone 10, 300 0, 800 8, 754 2, 046

Internet Services 1, 260 1, 460 1, 267 193

Medical Services 500 500 206 294

Repairs& Maintenance 43, 000 43, 000 29, 160 13, 840

Travel 200 200 200

Equipment Rental 500 500 67 433

t Office Expense 1, 000 1, 000 263 737

Operating Supplies 5, 000 5, 000 3, 607 1, 393

Clothing/Uniforms 4, 000 4, 000 1, 711 2, 289

Vehicle Expense 62, 000 59, 000 37, 143 21, 857

Traf ic Light Study

3 Miscellaneous 2, 000 2, 000 2, 000

Drainage Repairs 15, 000 I5, 000 7, 044 7, 956

Paving 500, 000 500, 000 431, 961 68, 039

Capital Outlay 90, 000 93, 200 93, 130 70

Total Highways & Streets 1, 015, 410 1, 015, 410 826, 816 188, 594

State Street Aid

StreetLighting 43, 000 43, 000 42, 155 845

Signs& Parts 5, 000 5, 000 5, 000
fi

Materials- Streets& Paving 86, 510 86, 510 27, 279 59, 231

Traffic Light Maintenance 3, 000 3, 000 1, 170 1, 830

Total State Street Aid 137, 510 137, 510 70, 604 66, 906

Solid Waste Sanitation

Salaries/ Wages 33, 000 34, 200 32, 092 2, 108

Payroll Ta ces 2, 690 2, 690 1, 952 738

Health Insurance 17, 000 17, 550 15, 738 1, 812
1

Retirement 4, 000 4, 000 3, 842 158

Worker' s Compensation Ins.  3, 200 3, 200 2, 184 1, 016

Medical Services 200 200 200

Contractual Fees 161, 425 158, 425 153, 928 4, 497

Operating Supplies 300 300 300

3

The accompanying notes to finaneial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,& CHANGES IN FUND BALANCEI
BUDGET & ACTUAL-

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014
i

Budgeted Amounts Variance with Final
3

ti Original Final Actual
Budget- Posirive

Negative)

Clothing/ Uniforms g g g
Vehicle/ Fuel Expense 4, 000 5, 250 5, 237 13

State Permit Fees

Total Solid Waste Sanitation 225, 815 225, 815 214, 973 10, 842

Recreation

Worker' s Compensation Ins.     573)     573

Utilities/ Telephone/ Internet 5, 320 5, 320 4, 068 1, 252

Joint Recreation Program 43, 000 58, 000 46, 253 11, 747

War Memorial 2, 000 3, 500 2, 687 813

Operating Supplies 1, 000 1, 000 I, 000

g Park Development 8, 000 8, 000 3, 615 4, 385

3 Miscellaneous 250 250 250

Total Recreation 59, 570 16, 070 56, 050 20, 020

Library
Salazies/ Wages 22, 000 21, 700 18, 902 2, 798

Payroll Taxes 1, 970 1, 970 1, 514 456

i Training 150 150 150
3

Retirement

Workar' s Compensation Ins.     100 100 16 84

i Utilities/ Telephone 3, 380 3, 380 2, 913 467

Intemet Services 500 500 440 60

Medical Services 200 200 130 70

Repairs 1, 000 1, 000 605 395

Travel 500 500 29 471

a Office Expense 1, 000 1, 000 766 234

Materials 5, 000 5, 300 5, 171 129

s Summer Reading 500 800 507 293

Miscellaneous 500 500 500

Computer& Support 2, 500 2, 500 1, 940 560

Copier Maintenance 400 400 400

CapitalOutlay 7, 500 7, 200 6, 676 524

Total Library 47, 200 47, 200 40, 009 7, 191

Otheri

Cemetery Maintenance 3, 650 3, 650 3, 650

TotalOther 3, 650 3, 650 3, 650

Debt Service

1 Principal 11, 394 11, 404 11, 394 10

Interest 485 505 491 14

Total Debt Service 11, 879 11, 909 11, 885 24

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2, 892, 368   $   2, 956, 297   $   2, 374, 107   $    582, 190

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.t
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TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE
4 STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,& CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET& ACTUAL-

GENERAL FUND

i For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Budgeted Amounts Variance with Final

Original Final Actual
Budget- Positive

Negative)

Excess( DeTciency) of Revenue Over
Under) Expenditures 693, 090)  $    ( 693, 090)  $       97, 004   $    790, 094

Other Financing Sources( Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance 693, 090) 693, 090)  97, 004 790, 094

FiJNDBALANCE- BEGINNING 2, 601, 141 2, 601, 141 2, 601, 141

FUND BALANCE- ENDING 1, 908, 051   $   1, 908, 051   $   2, 698, 145   $    790,094

1

4

1

11
4

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

s June 30, 2014
F

1
i

y NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIF' ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.  General Statement

The Town of Mount Carmel, Tennessee ( the " Town) was incorporated in 1961 under the

laws and provisions of the state of Tennessee. The Town operates under a Mayor-

Aldermanic form of government.  The Town provides the following services- Public

Safety-  Police and Fire,  Streets,  Sanitation,  Public Improvements,  General and
Administrative Services, Recreation, Library, and Sewer Services.

The Town' s financial statements are presented in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America( GAAP), as applied to govemmental

units. The Govemmental Accounting Standard Boazd ( GASB) is the standard- setting

body for governmental accounting and financial reporting.  The GASB periodically
updates its codification of the existing Govemmental and Financial Reporting Standazds

which, along with subsequent GASB pronouncements ( Statements and Interpretations),

t
constitutes GAAP for govemmental units.

The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting policies
are discussed in subsequent sections of these notes to the basic financial statements.  In

determining the financial reporting entity, the Town has no component units at June 30,
2014 over which the Town exercises significant influence.

B.  Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government- wide financial statements ( i.e., the Statement of Net Position and
Y

Statement of Activities) report information on the reporting govemment as a whole. They

include all funds of the reporting entity.  The statements distinguish between
igovernmental and business- type activities. Govemmental activities generally are financed

through tases, intergovernmental revenues and other non- exchange revenues. Business-

type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees chazged to external parties for
goods and services. The statement of activities demonstrates to the degree to which direct

expenses of a given function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses

are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Progam
revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly

benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and

2) grants and contributions that are restricted to rneeting the operational or capital

i requirements of a particular function or segment.  Taxes and other items not properly

included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.  The Town
does not allocate indirect costs to a specific function or segment.

26
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Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of which
is considered to be separate accounting entities. Each fund is accounted for by providing

a a separate set of self-balancing accounts that constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity,
revenues, and expenditures/ expenses. Funds are organized into two major categories

being governmental and proprietary categories. A fund is considered major if it is the
primary operating fund of the Town or meets the following criteria:

i

a.   Total assets,  liabilities,  revenues,  or expenditures/ expenses of the individual

govemmentaUenterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all

g fund of that category type.
b.   Total assets,  liabilities,  revenues,  or expenditures/ expenses of the individual

govemmentaUenterprise fund aze at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all

j governmental and enterprise funds combined.

iE
The funds of the Town are described as follows:

Governmental Funds

General Fund — The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the Town and is
classified as a major fund. It is used to account to for all activities except those legally or

administratively required to be accounted for in other funds.  State Street Aid revenues
and expenditures aze accounted for in the General Fund but separated to maintain their

integrity.
s

Special Revenue Funds — The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the

proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for certain
u oses. The s ecial revenue fund is the Dru Fund.P rP P S

Proprietary Fund
Enterprise Fund — The Enterprise Funds aze used to account for business- like activities

provided to the general publia These activities are financed primarily by user chargesi

and the measurement of financial activity focuses on net income measurement similar to

the private sector. The reporting entity includes the Towd s Sewer Fund.
il

Major& Non- major Funds

j The funds are further classified as major or non- major as follows:

t

Funds Major:

General Fund— See above for description.

Sewer Fund— Accounts for revenues and expenditures of the sewer fund.
3

SFundsNon-major:
Drug Fund — Accounts for revenues and expenditures relating to drug fund

joperations.

i
f
t
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D.  Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/ Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/ Fund
Balaaceaa

a

Cash & Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the Statement of Net Position, " cash & cash equivalents" includes all

demand and savings accounts of the Town. The Town has no certificates of deposit. For
f the purpose of the proprietary fund Statement of Cash Flows," cash and cash equivalents"

includes all demand accounts and savings accounts.

e

Interfund Receivables& Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual fundsi
that may result in amounts owed between the funds. Those related to goods and services
type are classified as " due to and due from other funds:' Interfund receivables and

payables between funds within governmental activities are eliminated in the Statement of
Net Position.

i
Receivables

In the government- wide financial statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned

and not yet received. Allowance for uncollectible accounts is based upon historical trends

and the periodic ageing of accounts receivable. Major receivable balances for the

governmental activities include property taxes, sales taxes, intergovernmental revenues
and grants. Business- type activities report sewer charges as their major receivables.

v

In the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds include

revenue accruals such as property taxes, sales taxes, grants, and intergovernmental
s revenues since they are both usually measurable and available. Nonexchange transactions

collectible, but not available are deferred in the fund financial statements in accordance

with modified accrual, but not deferred in the government wide financial statements in

accordance with the accrual basis. Proprietary fund material receivables consist of all

revenues earned at year end and not received. Utility accounts receivable compose the

majority of proprietary fund receivables.

S
Inventories

Inventories of materials and supplies on hand at year end are stated at cost on the first in

first out method.

Capital Assets

The accounting treatment over property, plant and equipment( capital assets) depends on

whether the assets are used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund
operations and whether they aze reported in the government- wide or fund financial
statements.

3
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Government- wide Statements

3 In the government- wide financial statements, capital assets are accounted for as capital

assets. All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual

is unavailable, except for donated capital assets which aze recorded at their estimated fair

value at the date of the donation. Estimated historical cost was used to value the majority

of the assets acquired prior to July 1, 2004. Prior to July 1, 2004, govemmental funds'
infrastructure assets were not capitalized. These assets have been valued at estimated

historical cost. In the government- wide financial statements, capital assets aze defined by
the Town for governmental activities as assets with an initial individual cost greater than

5, 000. For business- type activities, capital assets are defined as assets with an estimated

useful life greater than one year.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the

3 Statement of Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net

Position.

i

Depreciation is provided over the assets' estimated useful lives using the straight- line3

method of depreciation. The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as shown
below:

Buildings 25- 50 years

Improvements 10- 50 years

Machinery/ Equipment 5- 15 years

Utility System 40- 50 years

Infrastructure 25- 50 years
3

Land and Construction in Progress are not depreciated.

Fuud Financial Statements

3 In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in govemmental fund operations aze

accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the govemmental fund upon acquisition.

Capital assets used in proprietary fund operations aze accounted for the same as in the
government- wide financial statements.   In the cunent year,  there was  $ 0 interest

capitalized on enterprise fund capital assets.

Restricted Assets3

Restricted assets include cash in banks and receivables which are restricted because their

use is limited by laws, grant agreements, or debt service requirements.

Long- term Debt

The accounting treatment for long- term debt depends on whether the assets aze used in
i the governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are

reported in the government- wide or fund financial statements. All long- term debt to be
repaid from governmental and business- type activities resources are reported as liabilities

3

i
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in the gavernment- wide financial statements. The long-term debt consists primazily of
capital outlay notas and bonds payable.

P

Long- term debt for governmental funds is not reported as tiabilities in the fund financial

statements. Tha debt proceeds are reparted as other financing sources and payment afs

principle and interest aze reporied as expenditures. The aceounting far proprietary fund is
the same in the fund statements as it is in the government- wide statements.       j

P i

Compensated Absences f
The Town' s palicies regarding vacatian time permit emplayees to accnmulate earned but
unused vacatian leave. The liability far these compensaked absences is recarded as a
long- term debt in the govemment- wide financial statements while the ourrent portion of
this debt is estimated based on historical trends. In the fund financial statements,

govemmental funds report only the compensated absence lia6ility payable fram
expendable available financial resourees, while the praprietary funds report the liability
as it is incurred. The Town provides sick leave; however, in the event af termination,
accumulated sick leave is not paid.

9 Post- Employment Benefits

The Tawn pravides no post-employment benefits ta emp2oyees who retire or separate
from service. Alsa, the Tawn under the Consalidated Omnibus Budget Recanciliation
Act( COBRA) makes available healthcare benefrts available to eligible foxmer employees

and eligible dependents according ta certain requiraments outlined by the Pederal
government for this eovarage. At 7une 34, 2614, there were no participants in the
COBRA program.

s

Deferred Qutflows/ Inflows of Resources

In addition ta assets, the Statement of Nat Position will sometimes report a separate
secrion for deferrad outflows of rasources. This separate financiat statement element of

jdeferred autflows of resaurces represents a cansumption of net positian that applies to a
uture period and sa wili not be recognized as an outt7aw af resaurces
expense/ expenditure) uotil then. The Toum of Mount Carmel, Tennessee has one item

that qualifies for reparting in this category. This relates to deferred costs from the

refunding of debt ( result of reacquisit'tan price excess}, which was previously deferred
and amortazed are naw presented as deferred outilaws af resources.

a

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net 1' osition will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
defened inflows of resources, represents and an acquisition of net position that applies to
a future period and sa will nat be recognized as an inflow of resouroes ( revenue} untit

that time.  The government has items that qua( ify far reporking in this categary.
Accordingly, these items are reported in the government- wide Statement of Net Position

and/ or govemmental funds balance sheet. The items are from the following sources:
Current praperty taxes and delinquent property taaces.sa

31
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Net Position and Fund Balance

In the government- wide financial statements, equity is classified as net position and
displayed in three components:

1)  Net Investment in Capital Assets — Consists of capital assets including restrictedi

capital assets ( net of accumulated depreciation) and reduced by the outstanding
borrowings attributable to the acquisition, construcfion or improvement of those

assets.

3 2)  Restricted Net Position —Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use

either by 1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other govemments; or 2) law through constitutional provisions or

enabling legislation. The City' s policy is generally to use restricted net position first,
as appropriate opportunities arise.

3)  Unrestricted Net Position— All other net positions that do not meet the definition of

restricted" or" net investment in capital assets.
f

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balances are classified into
the following categories:

Nonspendable fund balances comprise those amounts that aze legally or contractually

required to remain intact.

Restricted fund balances comprise those amounts constrained to be used for a

specific purpose by external parties, constitution provisions, or enabling legislation.
Committed fund balances comprise those amounts constrained by the govemment

itself using its highest level of authority.
Assigned fund balances aze amounts intended to be used for a specific purpose by the

goveming body through action other than the highest level of authority.
Unassigned fund balances are any amounts other than those described above and are

available for any purpose.

Net Position and Fund Balance Flow Assumptions

When outlays for a particular purpose are funded from both restricted and unrestricted

resources, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources aze

considered to be applied. This City' s policy is that when both restricted and unrestricted
resources are available for expenditure, restricted resources should be spent first unless

legal requirements disallow it. When outlays are incurred for purposes for which amounts

in any unrestricted fund balance classification could be used, committed funds are to be
spent first, assigned funds second, and unassigned funds last.

i

x The Town' s highest level of decision- making authority is the Board of Mayor and

Alderman. This board may establish, modify, or rescind committed or assigned fund

balances by majority vote. When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which
amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used, it is the
Town' s policy to use unassigned resources first, then assigned and committed resources
as needed. When both restricted and unrestricted fund balances aze available for use, it is

32
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the Town' s policy to use restricted fund balance first, then use unrestricted fund balance
as stated above.

fea
E.  Revenues, Expenditures,& Expenses

a

F Property Tax/ Other Revenue
Under state law, property taxes become a lien on January 1 of each yeaz.  Property taxes
are levied annually and are due and payable from October lst through February 28t6 of
the following calendaz year.  The 2013 property taxes which are due and payable in the
current fiscal year are recorded as revenue in the fund financial statements to the extent

t they are collected within 60 days of year-end with the remainder being recorded as a
receivable and as deferred inflow of resources. The 2014 property taxes which became a

lien on January 1, 2014 and are not levied until October 1, 2014 are recorded as a
receivable and as deferred inflows of resources in the fund financial statements.  On the

government- wide statements, property taxes aze recorded as revenue in the year the tax
becomes a lien with the exception of the 2014 property taxes which are recorded as a

receivable and as deferred inflow of resources with the revenue being recognized in the

following fiscal yeaz which it is intended to finance.   Those revenues susceptible to
accrual are property taxes,  sales taac, beer taxes, gas taaces,  income taxes, interest
revenues, and charges for utility services. Permits, fines, penalties and other revenues are
not susceptible to accrual because they are not generally measurable until received in
cash.

Operatiag Revenue & Expenses

The sewer fund distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.

Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund' s principal ongoing
operations.   The principal operating revenues of the entire Town' s enterprise fund is
charges to customers for sales and services. The sewer fund also recognizes as operating

revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers

to the system.  Operating expenses for the sewer fund includes the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and

jexpenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
1
3

i Expenditures/ Expenses

In the government- wide financial statements, expenses are classified by function for both

j governmental and business- type activities. In the fund financial statements, expenditures

are classified by function and further classified as to cunent, debt service and capital
outlay. The proprietary fund expenditures are classified by operating and nonoperating

3 expenses. In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report expenditures of

financial resources while proprietary funds report expenses relating to use of economic
r

resources.

7
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Interfund Transfers

Permanent reallocation of resources between funds of the reporting entity are classified as
interfund transfers. For the purposes of the Statement of Activities, all interfund transfers

between individual govemmental funds have been eliminated.

i

F.  Use of Estimates

In preparing the Town' s fmancial statements, management is required to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure

of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported

amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.   Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2— STEWARDSI P, COMPLIANCE, & ACCOUNTABILITY

t

A.  Fund Accounting Requirements

The Town complies with regulations requiring the use of separate funds. The legally

required funds used by the Town include the following:
General Fund

a Drug Fund

The Town accounts for its State Street Aid revenues and expenses in the general fund
swhile still maintaining its integrity of the resources as allowed under Tennessee Code
1

Annotated. Also, the Solid Waste Sanitation Fund is now included in the General Fund

based on GASB Statement No. 54.

B.  Budgetary Informationa

The Town adopts annual budgets consistent with generally accepted accountinga

principles for the General Fund, Drug Fund, Solid Waste Sanitation Fund and the Sewer

Fund. The Board of Mayor and Aldermen approve any arnendments to these funds and all
annual appropriations for these funds lapse at year end.

C.  Deposits& Investment Laws & Regulations

The Town has no formal deposit and investment policies; however, the Town is required

to follow certain state statutes with respect to authorized investment and deposit
procedures. See Note 3 with respect to these general requirements.

3
i NOTE 3— CASH& CASH EQUIVALENTS
s

The Town of Mount Carmel has no formal policies with respect to deposits and investments;

however,  the Town is required to follow procedures regazding deposits and authorized

investments which are allowed by applicable state laws.  For the Town of Mount Cazmel, TCA
Code Section 6- 56- 106 prescribes the authorized investments for municipalities in the State of

Tennessee.  With respect to deposits, the State of Tennessee requires that all deposits in financial

institutions be collateralized by securities whose market value is equal to 105% of the value of the
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a uninsured deposits.   The financial institution deposits must be covered by federal depository

insurance or the Tennessee Collateral Bank Pool, by collateral held by the Town' s agent in the
Town' s name, or by the Federal Reserve Banks acting as third party agents. As of June 30, 2014,
the carrying amount of the Town' s deposits was $ 3, 819, 525 ( excluding cash on hand of$ 150)
and the respective bank balances totaled $ 3, 83' 7, 160.  The difference between the two amounts

represented deposits in transit, outstanding checks, or other reconcilable items.  As of June 30,
2014, the total bank balances of $3, 837, 160 were covered by either F.D.I.C. insurance or by
collateral pledged as part of the financial institutions participation in the Tennessee Collateral

Bank Pool. A recap of total deposits for the governmental and proprietary funds at June 30, 2014
is as follows:

i
Go rnmental Business- Type

Category Actitities Acfieties Total

Cash in Banks 2, 682, 786  $    1, 136, 739  $  3, 819,525

Total Deposits& In stmenfs 2, 682,786 1, 136, 739 3, 819, 525

Cash on Hand 50 150

Total Cas6& Cash Fqui alents S 2, 682, 936  $  1, 136, 739 S 3, 819, 675

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of bank failure, the Town would not

i be able to recover deposits or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.

As previously noted, all deposits were either covered by F. D. I.C. Insurance, collateral pledged as
3 part of the financial institutions participation in the Tennessee Collateral Pool or with

collateralized securities held by the Town' s agent in the Town' s name, or by the Federal Reserve
Banks acting as third party agents.

At June 30, 2014 the Town had the following cash& cash equivalents restricted:

Governmental Business- Type

Acti ities Acti i6es

Drug Fund Operations   $ 35, 512  $   

Debt Service Reserves 166,456

s

Total 35, 512 S 166,456

i NOTE 4— RECEIVABLES

Receivables as of year- end for the governmenYs individual major funds and non- major funds in

the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as showni
below:

5

i
t
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Non- major
d

Receivables General od Se er F nd    nds Total

Property Ta s 1, 187, 089  $       -     $      -     $  1, 187>089

Accounts/ Trade/ Other 22,973 147,9'IS 17Q951

Intergovemr ntal 168, 224 168, 224

Gross Recei ables 1, 378, 286 147, 978 1, 526,264

I.ess: Allowance for Uncollectibles 17,375) 17,375)

i Net Total Recei aWes 1, 378, 286   $ 130, 603   $      -     $ 1, 508,889

Revenues of the Sewer Fund are reported net of the allowance for uncollectibles.

NOTE 5— CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2014 was as follows:

Beginning Fnding

Balance Increases Decreases Balance
3

Go ernmental AcNrities

a Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:
Land 110, 427 E 16, 000   $      -     $   126, 927

Construction in Progress

Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 110,927 16, 000 126,927

1 Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Buildings/ Improvements 591, 644 5, 471 597, ll5

Machinery/ FquipmenUVehicles 1, 725, 200 119, 820 73, 642 1, 771, 378

f Library 115, 205 115, 205
3

Infrastructure 3, 907, 153 3,907,153

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 6,339,202 125, 291 73, 642 6, 390, 851

j Less: Accumulated Depreciation for:

Buildings/ Improvements 462, 229)     ( 10, 868) 473, 09

Machinery/ EquipmenUVehicles 1, 071, 079)    ( 106, 395)     ( 62, 600)    ( 1, 114, 874)

Library 115, 205) 115,205)

Infrastructure 2, 491, 699)     ( 75, 846) 2, 567, 545)

TotalAccumulatedDepreciation 4, 140, 212)   ( 193, 109)     ( 62, 600)    ( 4, 27Q721)

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated( net)      2, 198, 990      ( 67, 818)      11, 042 2, 120, 130

2
Go ernmental AcH ities Captal Assets( net)   $ 2, 309, 917 S ( 51, 818) $  11, 042   $ 2, 247, 057

1
s

i
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Beginning Fnrling I
Balance Tncreases Decreases Balance I

g Business-' 1Woe Activities

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:
CIand/RightofWays 167, 190 S      -     $      -     $    167, 190 J

Construction in Progress 195, 304 272,712 468,016
3

Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 362, 494 272, 712 468, 016 167, 190

j Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
i Machinery/ Equipment 588, 944 588, 944

iUtility Plant& Lines 9,962, 842 510,346 10,473, 188

i Tota1 Capital Assets Being Depreciated 1Q551, 786 510, 346 11, 062, 132

i Less: Accumulated Depreciation for:

Machinery/ Equipment 550, 353)     ( 12, 064) 562, 41 n
Utility Plant& Lines 4, 446, 602)    ( 214, 301) 4,660,903)

Total Accumulated Depreciation 4,996, 955)   ( 22b, 365) 5, 223, 320)

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated( net)      5, 554, 831 283, 981 5, 838, 812

Business- Type AcHvities Captal Assets( net)  $ 5, 917, 325 S 556, 693  $ 468, 016  $ 6, 006, 002

Depreciation expense was chazged to functions/ programs of the government are as shown below:

Go ernmental Acfirities

General Govemment 8, 274

Public Safety - Police& Fire 66,450

Highways& Streets( including infrastructure assets)       116,659

Sanitation

C lture/Recreation 1, 046

Animal Control 680

Library
Total DepreciaHon- Go ernmental Actiti6es 193, 109

Business- Type Activities

Sewer 226,365

Total Depreciation- Business- Type ActiviHes 226,365

TOTAL DFpRECIATTON 419, 474

NOTE 6— LONG- TERM DEBT

Governmental Activities

Capital Outlay Note - Issued in July, 2007 for $ 68, 364 at 4. 25%, maturing in 2013.  Purpose -
Capital outlay court reporting system. Note was retired in current yeaz.

Business- Type Activities

Tennessee Local Development Authority Bonds- Issued for $ 2, 162, 025 previously at 7. 06%,
maturing in 2020. Purpose— Construction of Sewer plant and facilities.

Capital Outlay Note- Issued in July 2003 at a rate of 4. 25°/ a for a twelve year period maturing in
2015. Total issue—$ 150, 032. Purpose— Capital outlay note- Sewer.
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Capital Outlay Note - Issued in August, 2004 for$ 100,000 at a rate of 4. 17% for a ten year period
maturing in August, 2014.  Principal payments of$ 10, 000 due annually in addition to interest.
Purpose- Pump station improvements- Sewer.F

s

j Sewer Revenue& Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2003, issued in July 2003 for$ 1, 495, 000 with an
average rate of 3. 841%, maturing in 2027. Purpose of issue - To refund the Sewer Revenue &
Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 1993, Sewer Revenue & Tax Bonds, Series 1993, and Sewer
Revenue& Tax Bonds, Series 1993A. This bond issue was refunded in the current yeaz.

4 General Obligation Refunding Bond, Series 2013 issued on 11/ 27/ 2013 to refund the Series 2003
Sewer Revenue& Tax Refunding Bonds. Total bond issue $545, 000 with an average interest rate
of 2. 48%.

Bond and capital outlay notes outstanding as of June 30, 2014 are shown as follows:3

Go ernmental Business- Type

issue Acti iHes ActiviHes Total

9°     Capital Outlay Note       $  
Capital Outlay Note 15, 570 15, 570

Capital Outlay Note 0, 960 10,960

TN Local Dev. Bonds 708, 686 708, 686

S 2013 Refunding Bonds 515,000 515, 000

TOTAL 1, 250, 216  $ 1, 250,216

i

Changes in long- term liabilities for the year ended June 3Q 2014 are as follows:

Due

Beginning Fnding Within 1

Go ernmental AcHvities Balance Additions ReducHons Balance Year

Capital Outlay Note 11, 394  $      -     $   11, 394  $

Total Capital Outlay Notes 11, 394 11, 394

Compensated Absences 22, 018 28, 842 22, 018 28, 842 28,842

Go ernmental AcHrity Long-      
Term Liabilities 33, 412   $  28, 842   $  33, 412  $    28, 8q2   $  28, 842

Due

Beginning F ding Within 1

Business- Type Activities Balance AddiHons Reductions Balance Year

Capital Outlay Note 30, 379  $      -     $   14, 809  $     15, 570  $   15, 570

Capital Outlay Note 21, 697 10, 737 0, 960 10,960

Bonds Payable 822, 715 114, 029 708, 686 116, 899

Bonds Payable 545, 000 30,000 515, 000 35, 000

Bonds Payable 535, 000 535,000

TotalNotes & Bonds 1, 409, 791 545, 000 704, 575 1, 25Q216 178, 429

Compensated Absences 5,339 4, 836 5, 339 4,836 4, 836

Business- Type Acti ity Long-
Term Liabilities 1, 415, 130   $ 549, 836   $ 709,914   $ 1, 255, 052   $ 183,265
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i

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for capital outlay notes and bonds aze as follows:
i

3

Go ernmental Ac6tiHes Business-' I v̀ae ActiHties

IYearFndingJune30 Principei Interest Principal Interest

2015 178,429  $   27, 135

2016 154,060 23,215

201' 7 161, 658 19, 749 iv
2018 164, 024 16,391 I

2019 62,025 12, 398 li
202Q2024 300, 020 32, 514

2025- 2027 130, 000 6,448

Total S 1, 250,216  $ 137, 850

i

z

NOTE 7— NET POSITION/FLTND EQUITY

At June 30, 2014 on the govemment-wide statement of net position, restricted net position is as
a

follows:

RestrictedNet Go eramental Busiuess- Type

PosiNon Acti ities Activities Total

State Street Aid 7Q917  $   7Q917

Drug Fund Operations 35, 512 35, 512

Debt Service 166,456 166, 456

j Total 106, 429   $     166, 456   $ 272, 885

At the fund level for financial reporting in the Governmental Funds and Enterprise Fund, $ 70, 917
was reserved for State Street Aid as it is accounted for in the General Fund and $ 166, 456 was

reserved for debt service in the Sewer Fund( i.e., an Enterprise Fund).

a

t
NOTE 8— EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS

1

Plaa Description

j Employees of Mount Carmel are members of the Political Subdivision Pension Plan ( PSPP), an

agent multiple-employer defined be efit pension plan administered by the Tennessee
Consolidated Retirement System ( TCRS). TCRS provides retirement benefits as well as death

and disability benefits.  Benefits are determined by a formula using the member' s high five- year

average salary and years of service.  Members become eligible to retire at the age of 60 with five
years of service or at any age with 30 years of service.  A reduced retirement benefit is availab( e

1 to vested members at the age of 55.  Disability benefits are available to active members with five
years of service who become disabled and cannot engage in gainful employment.  There is no

service requirement for disability that is the result of an accident or injury occuning while the
member was in the performance of duty.  Members joining the system after July 1, 1979 become
vested after five years of service and members joining prior to July 1, 1979 were vested after four
years of service.  Benefit provisions are established in state statute found in Title 8, chapters 34-

x 39

33
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i

37 of the Tennessee Code Annotated { TCA}.   State stafutes are amended by the Tennassee

General Assembly.  Political subdivisions such as Mount Carmel participates in the TCRS as
individual entities and are liable for all costs associated with the operation and administration of

their plan. Benefit improvements are not applicabie to a politicaI subdivision unless approved by
3

the chief governing body.
f

j The TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes nancial statemants and
required supplementary information for the PSPP.  That report may be obtained by writing to

jTennessee Treasury Depattment, Coasolidated Retirement System, IOth Floor Andrew Jacksan
Building, Nashvilta, TN 37243- 4234 ar can be accessed at h lltivww.tn. ovitreasuryttcrstFSi.ttP    

4

Funding Policy
Mount CarmeI had adopted a non- contributory retiremeat plan for its employees by assuming
employee contributions ug to S. Q percent of annual covered payroll.

r

Mount Carmal is required to contnbnte at an actuarialiy determined rate; the rate for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 2024 was I2. 04% af annual covared payroll. The contribntian requiremeot

g of plan members is set by stata statute.  The contribution requirements far Mount Carme! are
established and may be amended by the TCRS Board of Trustees.

a

Annaal Pension Cost

For the year ending Jnne 3Q, 2Q14 Moant Carmel' s annual pension oosY af$ 83, 414 to TCRS was
equal to Mount Carmel' s required and actual contributians.   The required contribution was

determined as part of the July 1, 2011 actuarial valuation using the frozen entry age actuazial oost
i method.  Significant actuarial assumptions ased in the valuation include ( a} rate af return on

investment af present and future assets af 7. 5 percent a year campaunded annually, { b} prajectad

3. Q percent annual rate of inflation( c) projected salary increases of 4. 75 gercent( graded} annual

rate ( no explxcit assumption is made regarding the portion attributable to the effects of inflation
an salaries), ( d) projected 3. 5 percent annual incraase in the Sacial Security wage base, and ( e)

e projacted post retirement increases of 2. 5 percent annuaHy.  The actuanai value of assets was

determined using techniques that smaath the effect of short-term volatiiity in the market vatue af
total investmenis over a ten- yeaz period Mount Carmel' s anfunded actuazial accrued liability is

being amortized as a level dollar amount on a closed basis.  The arnortization period at July 1,
2011 was 5 years.  An actuarial valuation was performed as of July I, 2011 which established

contribution rates effective July 1, 2012.

r
Trend Infarmation:

Anoual Pensian Percentage of Net Pansian

F5sca1 Year Fnding Cast( APC    APC" Contributed OWigation

p6/ 30/ 14 83, 419 100% 

Ob/ 30113 44,430 I° lo

06l30/ 12 85,542 00% 

I

Funded Status and Funding Progress:
S

a
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As of July 1, 2013, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 96. 65% funded.  The

actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $ 1. 98 million, and the actuarial value of assets was

1. 69 million, resuhing in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of$0. 07 million. The
covered payroll ( annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $ 0. 76 million, and
the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 8. 72%.

The schedules of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information ( RSI)
following the notes to the financial statements, present multiyear trend information about whether

the actuarial values of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the AALs for
benefits.

Actuarial UAAL as a

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage

j Valua6on Value of Liability( AAL)    AAI,   FLnded Co ered of Corered

Date PlanAssets    tryAge     ( UAAL)   RaHo Payroll Payroll

a)      b)  b)-( a)    ( a/ b)     ( c)    ((! ra)/ c))

07/ Ol/ 13   $     1, 980  $ 2, 048  $     69 96. 65%  $   787 8. 72%

07/ Ol/ 11   $     1, 688  $ 1, 795  $    107 94. 06%  $   758 14. 06%

07/ O1/ 09   $     1, 212  $ 1, 231   $     19 98. 47%  $   759 2. 48%

t

Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

9
at
a

NOTE 9— RISK ASSESSMENT

The Town purchases commercial insurance to cover risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage

to, and destruction of assets; natural disasters; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and
8

I the employees' health plan.  For the current year, there have been no significant reductions in

insurance coverage.  Liabilities or settlements in excess of insurance coverage are reported when

it is probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated.
With regards to risk management, there were no settlement amounts which exceeded insurance

coverage for the current year or the three prior yeazs.

i

NOTE 10— ADVANCE REFUNDED DEBT

In previous years, the Town advance refunded certain sewer revenue and tax bonds by placing the

y proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments of

the old bonds. On June 30, 2014, there were $ 0 bonds outstanding that are considered defeased.

i

NOTE 11 — LEGAL MATTERS
i

Based on notification from legal counsel, the Town is involved in two litigation issues 1)

regarding inverse condemnation with one claim seeking unspecified damages azising from
alleged unlawful refusal to issue a building permit, and 2) vehicular accident with claimant

stating officer was at fault. The Town is now in the process of contesting liabilities, and pre- trial

41
i
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prepazation has not advanced sufficiently to accurately evaluate the likelihood of an unfavorable

outcome with any degree of certainty.
I

NOTE 12— SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In preparing these financial statements, the Town has evaluated events and transactions for
potential recognition or disclosure through December 16, 2014, the date the financial statements

were available to be issued.

1
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TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE pF FUNDING PROGRESS- PENSION PLAN
a

June 30, 2014

i

jE

jActuarial Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded UAAL as a

Valuation Value of Plan Liability( AAL) AAL Funded Covered Percentage of

Date Assets Entry Age UAAL)     Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll

a)    b)       b)- ( a)      ( a/ b) c) b- a)/( c))

07/ O1/ 11    $       1, 688   $ 1, 795   $      107 94.04%   $     758 14. 12%

07/ O1/ 09    $       1, 212   $ 1, 231    $ 19 98. 46%   $     759 2. 50%

07/ O1/ 07    $ 986   $ 1, 007   $ 21 97. 91%   $     671 3. 13%

i

Note: Dollar Amounts in Thousands

yi
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TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE

COMB[ 1VING BALANCE SHEET

NOlV- MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 34, 2Qi4

t

Totat Non-Major

Goveromental

rug Fund Fupds

3 ASSETS

Cash 35, 512   $     35, 512

Due from Other Funds

Total Assets 35, 512 35,512

L B x s

Accounts Payable

Accrued Salaries& Benefits

Total Liabiiities

FZ71VD BALANCES

Restricted 35, 512 35, 512

Total Fund Balances 35, SI2 35, 512

fiatal Liabilities& Fand Batance 35, 512   $     35, 512

3

a

6
s
t
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TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,& CHANGES

IN FUNI} BALANCES- NCIN- MAJOR Gt?VERNA? NTAI. FI7NDS

For the Year Ended June 3Q, 2Q14

1

i Total Non-Major

3 Governmental

Drug Fund Fands

REVENUE

Drug Fees 1, 496   $       1, 496

1 Drug Contributions 31, 332 31, 332

Interest Income 72 72

Tatal Reveoue 32, 400 32, 90Q

i

EXPENDITTJRES

Crime Pravention

Capitat Outlay 26, 690 26,690

Speciai Investigative Funds 2, 40fl 2, 604
i

Tota! Expenditures 2$, 644 2&,640

43
i

Excess( Deficiency) af Revenue Over
Uuder) Expenditures 4, 2I0 4, 214

Net Change in Fund Balance 4, 214 4, 214

3

Fund Balance- Beginning 31, 302 31, 302

und Balance- Ending 5 35, 512   $     35, 512

t

t

1

b
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TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, & CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET& ACTUAL-

DRUG FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

i
i

Variance Wit6

Final Budget-

i Original Final Actual Positive

Budget Budget Amounts      ( Negative)

3 REVENUE

i Drug Fines 500   $       500   $    1, 496   $     996

Drug Contributions 2, 500 2, 500 31, 332 28, 832

Interest Income 10 10 72 62

Total Revenue 3, 010 3, 010 32, 900 29, 890

EXPENDTTURES

Crime Prevention 3, 000 3, 000 3, 000

CapitalOutlay 27, 000 27, 000 26, 690 310

Special Investigative Funds 2, 000 2, 000 2, 000

Total Expenditures 32, 000 32, 000 28, 690 3, 310

s

Net Change in Fund Balance 28, 990)     ( 28, 990)       4, 210 33, 200

Fund Balance- Beginning 31, 302 31, 302 31, 302

Fuad Balance- Ending 2, 312   $     2, 312   $  35, 512   $ 33, 200

3

fi
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TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES

SOLID WASTE SA1vITATION FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

I
Variance With

Final Budget-

Original Actual Positive

Budget Final Budget Amounts Negative)

REVENUE

Revenues

Total Revenue

EXPENDITURES

Wages/ Salaries 33, 000 34, 200 32, 092 2, 108

Payroll Taxes 2, 690 2, 690 1, 952 738

Insurance 20, 200 20, 750 17, 922 2, 828

Retirement 4, 000 4, 000 3, 842 158

Contract Services 161, 425 158, 425 153, 928 4, 497

Supplies/ Other 500 500 500

Equipment Operating Expenses 4, 000 5, 250 5, 237 13

Total Expenditures 225, 815 225, 815 214, 973 10, 842

A

y Excess ( Deficiency) of Revenues Over
Under) Expenditures 225, 815)  $  ( 225, 815)  $  ( 214, 973)  $ 10,842

93
a

Note: Excess expenditures are funded through property taxes levied by the

Town. Effective July 1, 2011, the Solid Waste Sanitation Fund is reported
within the General Fund.

i
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TOWN OF MOi7NT CAE2MEL, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQ[ aIREMENTS
a BUSINESS- TYPE ACTIVITIES

June 30, 2014

Principal Interest Total

TLDA BOP ipS
a

4 Fiscal Year Ending 7una 34:
a s llfi,%99   $    13, 472   $     130,371

241b 1] 9,460 11, 311 134,371
Z X7 121, 658 8, 713 130, 371

2018 124, 024 6, 347 130, 3' 71

2019 127, 025 3, 346 130, 371

2020 200, 020 1, 018 101, 638

Totai 748, 686 44, 241 752, 843

2013 GOB REFUNDING BONDS

Fiscal Year Ending June 30:

y 2015 35, 000 I2, 772 47, 772

2016 35, 000 11, 904 4b, 904

2017 4Q, 404 11, 036 51, 436

2018 40, 000 10, 044 50, 044

2019 35, 000 9, 052 44, 052

2020 35, 000 8, 1$ 4 43, 184

3 2021 40,000 7, 316 47, 316

2Q22 40, 400 6,324 45, 324

2023 40, 000 5, 332 45,332

2024 45, 000 4, 340 49, 340

2025 45,000 3, 224 48, 224

2026 40,Op0 2, 108 42, 108
9

2027 45, 400 1, 116 46ll&

Tota!    515, 000 92, 752 607, 752

1 CAPTTAL QUTLAX NC1TE

Fiscal Year Ending June 30:
2Q15 IS, S' ld 660 16230

Total 15, 570 6b4 16, 234

CAPITAL OUTLAY NOTE

Fiscal Year Ending June 30:
20I5 10, 960 231 11191

g Total 10, 9bd 231 It, 141

Total Business- Tyge Activities 1, 250, 216   $  137, 850   $   1, 388, 066

3

4
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TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN PROPERTY TAX RECEIVABLE

GENERAL F'[ JND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Property Tax
Receivable Anticipated Abatements Net Receivable

Balance June Property Tax Current Year and Allowance for Balance

Tax Year 30, 2014 Levied Levy Adjustments Collections Uncollectibles June 30, 2014

2014 1, 099, 684   $    1, 099, 684

2013 1, 098, 061 1, 783 1, 047, 041 52, 803

2012 46, 532 31, 125 15, 407

2011 17, 378 8, 527 8, 851

2010 8, 597 2, 320 6, 277

2009 435 81 354

2008

2007 1, 056 1, 056

2006

2005 454 454

2004 2, 203 2, 203

2003 795 795

1, 175, 511   $ 1, 783   $   1, 099, 684   $    795   $    1, 089, 094   $ 1, 187, 089

The 2014 tax notices become a lien in the state of Tennessee on January lst of each year. The notices are due from October 1, 2014

through February 28, 2015. The total amount is reflected as defened inflows of resources on the govemmental fund balance sheet as of

June 30, 2014, while only the 2014 ta ces aze reflected as defened inflows of resources on the government- wide statement of net position.

Note: These taxes upon delinquency aze turned over to the Chancery Court one year after becoming delinquent.
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TOWN OF MOUNT CARNIEL, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF TAX RATES& ASSESSMENTS

For the Year Ended June 3D, 2014

f Calendar Tax Year Assessed Valuation Tax Rate Per$ 100

2014 79, 683, 576 138

2013 79, 56' 7, 351 138

2012 75, 481, 644 138

2011 75, 723, 284 1. 38  *

2010 67, 303, 092 1. 72

2009 66, 338, 069 1. 37

2008 65, 063, 639 137

2007 63, 618, 750 1. 37

2006 62, 309, 455 1. 15

2005 50, 928, 989 137

fl 2004 49, 217, 549 137

2003 48, 514, 073 137

2002 47, 578, 283 1. 27

2001 46, 050, 846 1. 27

j 2000 35, 995, 220 1. 58

1999 33, 938, 808 1. 58

1998 32, 446, 222 1. 58

s
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TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE IN FORCE

June 30, 2014
i

COVERAGE:

a

TML Policy# 0053- 15, Period 7/ 1/ 13 to 7/ 1/ 14

General Liability/ Law Enforcement Liability/ Errors/ Omissions Liability/ Auto Liability
S 300, 000 per person for bodily injury or personal injury as limited by the Tort Liability Act.

700,000 per occurrence for bodily injury or personal injury as limited by the Tort LiabiliTy
Act.

y
a

100, 000 per occurrence for property damage as limited by the Tort Liability Act.
1, 000, 000 per occurrence for each other loss.

1, 000,000 per person or per occurrence for catastrophic medical expenses excess of bodily
injury.

1, 000 per person and $ 1Q000 per accident for medical payments.

85, 000 per occunence for fire damage.

50, 000 per occurrence for non- monetary defense costs.
Errors/ Omissions: $ 1, 000, 000 per occurrence; $ 100, 000 per occurrence for non- monetary
defense costs.

Deductibles- Errors/ Omissions: $ 2, 500 per occunence, auto physical damage comprehensive
and collision $ 1, 000 per occunence.

PROPERTY COVERAGE:

i

j TML Policy# 5- 58- 15, Period 7/ 1/ 13 to 7/ 1/ 14
Blanket Limit Per Occurrence- $ 6, 597, 869

Building& Personal Property- $ 6, 097, 467
EDP Equipment- $ 100, 000

Mobile Equipment-$ 382, 402

Automatic Coverage for Flood, Earthquake, Demolition, and Pollution Clean- up with
coverage' s ranging from $ 50, 000 to $ 1, 500, 000.

Employee Dishonesty- $ 150, 000 per loss including same for forgery, theft, and computer
fraud.

WORKERS COMPENSATION COVERAGE:

TML Policy# 0053- 15 Period, 7/ 1/ 13 to 7/ 1/ 14
Limits-$ 300, 000 per accident/$ 700,000 by disease/$ 300,000 each employee by disease.

a
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TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF UTILPfY RATES IN FORCE & CUSTC}MERS

Far the Year Ended June 30, 2414

1

SEWER RATES

Minimum Bitl 25. 00/ month

i Excess Over 2, 000 Ga2lons 5. 2511, 000 GalIons

Note: Sewer usage basad on 90% of water usage

Total number of customers at year end: 2, 94$
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TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN OPERATION

OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Construction Machinery,
in Progress &     Buildings &      Equipment,      Library

Function Land Improvements Vehicles Collection Infrastructure Total

General Govemment    $ 58, 927   $ 337,460   $       87, 771   $ 484, 158

Police & Fire 128, 862 974, 050 1, 102, 912

Highways/ Streets 27, 000 22,900 659, 708 3, 875, 923 4, 585, 531

Sanitation 49, 849 49, 849

Culture/ Recreation 41, 000 57, 203 31, 230 129, 433

AnimalControl 27, 190 27, 190

Library 23, 500 115, 205 138, 705

Total 126, 927   $ 597, 115   $   1, 771, 378   $   115, 205   $     3, 907, 153   $   6, 517, 778
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TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS &

STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

CFDA Contract

Federal Grantor/ Pass- Through Grantor Number Number Expenditures

f FEDERAL AWARDS:

Department of Housing and Urban Development
Pass- Through State of Tennessee, Department of

Economic and Community Devetopment
Community Development Block Grant 14. 228 33004- 63612    $      259, 991

1 Total Program 14. 228 259,991

Department of Transportation
r

Pass- Through State of Tennessee

Department of Transportation

State and Community Highway Safety 20. 600 154AL- 13- 167   $  I, 511

State and Community Highway Safety 20. 600 Z14GHS252 1, 001

Total Program 20. 600 2, 512

t

Department of Transportation

National Highway Traffic Safety Administration
Alcohol Open Container Requirements 20. 607 Z14GHS250    $ 4, 770

Alcohol Open Container Requirements 20. 607 154AL- 13- 166 7, 061

Alcohol Open Container Requirements 20. 607 Z14GHS251 4, 867
R

Total Progam 20. 600 16, 698

Total Federal Awards 279, 201

Basis of Presentation:

Note 1: The accompanying Schedule of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance summarizes the
expenditures of Town of Mount Carmel, Tennessee under programs of the federal and state govemments

for the year ended June 30, 2014. The schedule is presented using the modified accrual basis of
accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with requirements of OMB
Circular A- 133; therefore, some amounts in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in

r

j the preparation of the basic financial statements.
3
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TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS& STATE

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

June 30, 2014

Ri3
1.  BASIS OF PRESENTATION:

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the expenditures
incurred by Town of Mount Carmel, Tennessee that are reimbwsable under federal programs
of federal assistance.   The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the

requirements of the Office of Management and Budget ( OMB) Circular A- 133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non- Prof:t Organizations. Because the schedule presents
only a selected portion of the operations of Town of Mount Carmel, Tennessee, it is not

intended to and does not present the fmancial position, changes in net assets or cash flows of

Town of Mount Carmel, Tennessee. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may
differ from amounts presented in,  or used in the prepazation of,  the basic financial
statements.

2.  BASIS OF ACCOUNTING:

iThe accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the
accrual basis of accounting.   Expenditures reported include any property or equipment
acquisitions incurred under the Federal Program
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DAVID M. ELLIS
Certifred PublicAccountnrtt

Member, American Institute uf
Certifted Public Acrountarits

Meruber, Tennessee SocietY of
3 Certified Pu6lic Accoiintarits

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR' S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER

j FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDTT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
a

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAUDITINGSTANDARDS
i

The Honorable Mayor and Aldermen

Town of Mount Carmel

Mount Carmel, Tennessee3

I have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
govemmental activities, the business- type activities, each major fund, and the aggegate remaining
fund information of the Town of Mount Carmel, Tennessee, as of and for the year ended June 30,

3

2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town of
Mount Carmel, Tennessee' s basic financial statements, and have issued my report thereon dated
December 16, 2014.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting
ii

In planning and performing my audit of the financial statements, I considered the Town of Mount
Carmel, Tennessee' s internal control over financial reporting( internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing my opinions on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Town of Mount Carmel, Tennessee' s internal control.  Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Town of Mount Carmel, Tennessee' s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a

3 material misstatement of the entity' s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected anda

corrected on a timely basis. A signifcant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit

i attention by those charged with governance.

My consideration of internal controt was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control that might be materia(
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during my audit I did not identify
any deficiencies in intemal control that I consider to be material weaknesses. However, material

weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Leighron House •  132 Depot Street We • Grecneville, Tennessee 37743

423) 787- 0855  • Fax ( 423) 639- 0124

i



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Mount Carmel, Tennessee' s
financial statements are free from material misstatement, I performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.

However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of my
audit, and accordingly, I do not express such an opinion. The results of my tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government

i Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

5 The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of my testing of internal control and

I

s

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity' s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity' s intemal control and
compliance. Accardingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.  

L/ F,    ,(,     

David M. Ellis, CPA
g

Greeneville, Tennessee I

December 16, 2014
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TOWN QF MQUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINDS AN7? RECOMMENDATION5
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

3
1

Fiaancial Statement Fittdings

Finding Number      Finding TiYle Status

Note: Thare were na priar year ftnanciat staternent findings reported.

Compliance Findings

a

Findin Number Findin Title Status

2013- Odl Patential Viotation of Traffice Citatian Statute Corrected

2Q23- 002 Violation of Purchasing Antharity Corracted
iI

3
I

I
f

5&



a

RESOLUTION NO.  523

A RESOLUTION TO AVTHORIZE AN ACTUARIAL
STUDY TO DETERMINE THE LIABILITY ASSOCIATED
WITH ALLOWING MEMBERS WITH ONE  ( 1)  YEAR I.

SERVICE CREDIT IN THE TENNESSEE CONSOLIDATED
RETIItEMENT SYSTEM TO ESTABLISH RETIREMENT

CREDIT FOR TIME DURING WHICH SUCH MEMBERS
WERE EMPLOYED BY A POLITICAL SUBDIVISION IN
ACCORDANCE WITH TITLE 8, §§ 34-37, OF TENNESSEE
CODEANNOTATED.

WHEREAS,  Tenn. Code Anno. §8- 35- 236 authorizes a political subdivision participating in the
Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System to permit any member who has one

1) year or more of current membership service in the Retirement System to
establish retirement credit for time during which such member was employed by
such political subdivision;

WHEREAS,  four ( 4) conditions must be met prior to allowing such members to make the
above election.  Said condirions are as follows:

1)      The political subdivision authorizes and pays for the cost of an actuarial

study to determine the liability associated with the granting of such prior service;

2)      The member files with the political subdivision, within sixty( 60) calendaz
days of the passage of the resolution authorizing the study, a notice of the
member' s intention to establish such prior service.  Any member who fails to file
the notice of election within the sixty ( 60) day period shall not later be eligible to

iestablish such prior service;

3 Foilowin the review of the cost ofO g granting such prior service, the chief

governing body of the political subdivision by a two- thirds ( 2/ 3) vote passes a
resolution authorizing the service for such members,  and accepting liability
therefore; provided, however, the political subdivision may only authorize credit
for such periods of previous service as authorized for other employees of the
political subdivision; and

4)      Any such member making the above election pays to the Retirement
System in a lump sum the employee contributions he would have made had he
been a member of the Retirement System during the period claimed, plus interest
at the rate provided in §8- 37-214.

MS1Wordprolres 523. Iwp
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NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of

the Town of Mount Carmel, Tennessee, hereby authorizes an actuarial study to determine the
liabiliTy associated with allowing the above provisions and accepts responsibility for the cost of
such study.

Dul assed and a roved this the - ` N'   da ofJanY P PP y uary, 2015.

A

Y FR ST, Mayor

ATTEST:   i

CITy

r   "

ti' v      1,
SANDIDGE, City Rec der Ae     1V' gs

APPROVED AS TO FORM:
a

i

I
r

C. CHRISTOPHER S, JR.

i
I
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FIRST READING AYES NAYS OTHER

3 Alderman Eu ene Christian x

Alderman Mar aret Christian x

Alderman Wanda Davidson x

Alderman Chris Jones Abstain/ conflict of interest

Alderman Carl Wolfe x

Vice- Ma or Paul Hale x

Ma or La Frost x

TOTALS 6 0 1

PASSED:  January 27, 2015 j

I

3

1

I

I

F
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STA'1'E OF TEIYNESSEE

CO[ INTY OF HAWHINS

i, Marian Sandidge, City Recorder af the Town of Mount Carmel, " Fennessee, do hereby certify

that this is a hue and e ct copy of the foregoing Resatution that was approved and adopted at a meeting

held on the 27th day of 7anuary, 2015, ffie original of whioh is on fite in this office. I further certify that

members voted in favor of the resotution and that        members were present and voting.

IN WIINESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand, and the seal of the Town of Mount

Carmel, Tennessee.    

a b I-fYL ,          I
LA ANDIDGE, City   ' order

GTt

y     

i     ,

1
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Memo to BMA

From Building Inspector
StJB7ECT: Surplus PTaperty
January 2, 20 t 5

1.  The digital camera I have used for several years no longer works.  Request it be declared surplus and

be disposed of as trash.

2.  The camera is a Sony FD Mavica MVC FD 2QQ serial number 506858, Tawn Tag# Q0430.

i C ince is n r

1
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Mt.  Carmel Department of Pubiic Works

Monthly Report
Period Qf Report From ] 2/ 1/ 14 To 12/ 31f14

Street Department Current Month No. af Emplayees YTD Tatals Previous YTD

x
Hours Plowing Snow

a 225

Tons of 5alt Spreaded
5 0 222

Tons of Cold Mix Used
Z. s 5 19. 5 32

i 16 4 573. 5 812

f Hours Mowing

Hours Weed Eatin
4 26 48. 5

Number of Si ns Re aired
2 6g 155

Number of Holes Patched
30 4 147 319

104 S 1305 2481. 5
Hours Street Maintenance

3

Sta#e Street Aid Current Month No. af Empioyees YTD Totais Previous YTD

Mours Mowing
5 335. 5 426

Hours Weed Eating/ Spraying            
105 44S i

Hours Picking Up Litter
3g 2 104. 5 189

Hours Trimmin Trees
S 0 48

Number of Hoies Patched
4 8 299

Number of Signs ftepaired
2 8 12

Hours Street MainYenance
39 5 85. 5 277. 5

Hout's Piowing Snow
S 105 71

Tans of Sait Spreaded
5 2. 5 87. 7

Building- Ground- Recycling Current Month No. of Employees YTD Tokals Previous YTD

Number of White Goods
z 165 199

Number of Fumiture
Z    2 524 832

Loads of Br tsh

18 2 422 428

oads of Bagged eaves
1 1 109 7

loads Qf eaves{ leaf Vac. }
I Z 2 41 7

ReCyCte Trips
4 2 45 54

4

e



Mt.  Carmel Department of Public Works

Monthiy Repor#f

City Park Cur ent Month Na. of Empiayees YTD Totals Previous Yi'Q

Nours Mowing Park
Q 2 t48 148

Naurs Weed Eating
0 2 53 34

Hours Cleaning Park Z 2 84 144

0 18$   173. 5
Hours Cieanin Restrooms

Veterans Memorial - Paric
106 bo

i

Maintenance Current Manth No. of Employees YTD Totals Previous YTQ

Haurs of Bui{ding Maintenance
174 5 1254. 5 1054

Hours fo Grounds Maintenance      $
7 5 1254. 5 1484. 5

Hours of Repairin E uipment
2 5 43 5 846 I

l

Hours of Servicing Equipment
8 5 250. 5 343 j

Hours Geaning Equipment
5 0

I

Employees Current Overtime YTD Overtime

57. 5
3ahnn Castie

David Wallen
Q 40

Carl Calton
Q 58. 5

I
Jason Salyer

54

Steven t+lcLain
i

t

e
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l . '    Tawn of Maunt Carmel
N yw LARRY FROST, MAYOR

2 04 East Main Street, P. O. Box 1421

Mount Carmel, Tennessee 37645

Phone (423) 357- 7311 Fax ( 423) 357- 7710

E- mail mcch a chartertn.net

MaunL Carmel Munici al Court

Hanorable Terry R3sner

DECEMBER 2014
MONTHLY MUNICIPAL COURT REPORT

i Sessians of Court:  December 3, 2Q14
December 1, 2014

3

Tatal Number of Receipts:  43

Sammary af Assessments by Fund Type:
Certi ed Mail 0• u

Clerk Fee 914. 00

Court Costs 1, 624. 00

Driving withaut a Lieense 10. 04

Edacation Fee 31, 04

Failure to Appear 0. 00

F' ine a

Litigation Tax 371. 25

Municipal Fines 1, 235.75

E Seat Belt Violations 40.00

f Child Restraint SOAO

iAnimal License

Damage ta City Property gQ4• Q

Tatal fines collected 4,' 786. 00

j Less Total Deductions

Litigation Tax 5 363. 82

Education Fee 29. 75

Fines, Fees and Cost Dept. af 5afety 95. 00

Mator Vehicle Enforcement d d

TOTAL PAID TCl TI-IE STATE OF TENNESSEE:        488. 57

Tota] revenue for the Town of Mount Carmel:      4, 297. 43

Prepared by Carol Marsh, Municipal Court Clerk
DECEMBER 2014



SEL: Year Fnd Accnt Obj Gp Sub Loc. Pgm TOLIN OF MWNT CARMEL PAGE:     1 DECEMBER 2014
GENERAL FUND

UIICOII9Ct8f RBVBOUBFROM: 2014 110 30000 000 00 000 0000 000 REVENUE REPORT Jan 22, 2015
THRU: 2014 110 39999 000 00 000 0000 000 REPORT DATE: 12/ 31/ 2014 11: 15 AM SHOULD NOT

ESTIMATED MONTN- TO-

DATEI
YEAR- TO- DATE

I
UNCOLLECTED

IUNCOLLEDI
BE OVER SO%.

IACCWNT/ DESCRIPTIDN............................ I REVENUES I REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE     % OF BUDG

31100 REAL ESTATE TAXES 1, 015, 000. 00 352, 410. 00 570, 541. 00 444, 459. 00      . 43%

31200 DELIN UENT PROPERTY TAXES 30, 000. 00 2, 515. 00 24, 836. 90 5, 163. 10      . 17%

31300 INT, PEN COURT COST- PROP TAXES 10, 000. 00 514. 20 4, 556. 29 5, 443. 71      . 54%
31610 LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX 280, 000. 00 32, 739. 47 146, 199. 26 133, 800. 74      . 47%

31710 uHOLESALE BEER TAX 35, 000. 00 3, 132. 08 22, 498. 91 12, 501. 09      . 35%

31912 CHARTER CABLE FRANCHISE 53, 000. 00 00 35, 983. 46 17, 016. 54      . 32%
32610 BUILDING PERMITS 4, 000. 00 115. 00 5, 305. 00       - 1, 305. 00     -. 32%

33191 POSTAL CONTRACT 22, 536. 00 1, 878. 25 11, 269. 50 11, 266, 50      . 49%
33410 STATE SUPPLEMENT PAY 3, 600. 00 00 3, 600. 00 00      . 00%
33419 CIVIL WAR GRANT LIBRARY 2012 00 00 00 00      . 00%
33422 STATE LIBRARY GRANT LAPTOPS FY 17- 12 00 00 00 00      . 00%
33423 RURAL DEV LIBRARY LAPTOP GRANT FY 11- 1 00 00 00 00      . 00%
33424 GHSO H1 VISIBILITY 13- 14 00 00 00 00      . 00%
33425 GHSO NETNORK GRANT 11- 12 00 00 00 00      . 00%
33426 GHSO ALCOHOL GRANT 11- 12 00 00 00 00      . 00%
33429 GHSO HIGH VIS[ BILITY 12- 13 00 00 00 00      . 00%

33430 GHSO CARTERS VALLEY HI VISIB 12- 13 00 00 00 00      . 00%
33431 GHSO NETNORK COORDINATOR 12- 13 00 00 00 00      . 00%
33432 GHSO CAR7ERS VALLEY RD DUI 13- 14 00 9, 319. 55 11, 271. 37      - 11, 271. 37      . 00%

33433 GHSO NETLIORK GRANT 13- 14 00 00 00 00      . 00%

33434 TML SAFETY GRANT 09- 10 RES 433 00 00 00 00      . 00%

33435 TML SAFETY GRANT 10- 11 RES 451 00 00 00 00      . 00%

33436 TML GRANT FY11- 12 RES 11- 474 00 00 00 00      . 00%

33510 STATE SALES TAX 350, 000. 00 33, 257. 44 200, 864. 71 149, 135. 29      . 42%
33520 STATE INCOME TAX 4, 500. 00 00 11, 058. 43       - 6, 558. 43    - 1. 45%
33530 STATE BEER 7AX 2, 500. 00 00 1, 394. 68 1, 105. 32      . 44%

33551 S7A7E STREET AID- REVENUE 140, 000. 00 11, 432. 96 73, 001. 46 66, 998. 54      . 47%
33552 STATE GASOLINE 7AX 10, 000. 00 923. 16 5, 541. 87 4, 458. 13      . 44%
33591 TVA PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES 58, 000. 00 15, 730. 75 15, 730. 75 42, 269. 25      . 72%
33593 CORPORATE EXCISE TAX 00 00 00 00      . 00%

33719 LIBRARY DONATIONS/ REVENUE 5, 000. 00 47. 50 5, 427. 04 421. 04     -. OS%
33720 FIRE DEPARTMENT REVENUE 15, 000. 00 50. 00 16, 275. 13       - 1, 275. 13     -. 08%
33722 F[ RE DEPT FORESTRY GRANT 2012- 13 00 00 00 00      . 00%
34310 STATE HIGHWAY CONTRACT 15, 000. 00 1, 063. 80 3, 793. 40 11, 206. 60      . 74%
34320 CEMETERY CHARGES 3, 650. 00 00 00 3, 650. 00 1. 00%
34510 ANIMAL CONTROL( FEES, FINES & ADOPTION)       1, 000. 00 122. 25 388. 25 611. 75      . 61%
35110 CITY COURT FINES AND COSTS 85, 000. 00 4, 576. 50 32, 352. 50 52, 647. 50      . 61%
35112 REDFLEX PHOTO SPEED ENFORCEMENT 36, 000. 00 2, 629. 48 18, 026. 88 17, 973. 12      . 49%

35140 DRUG RELATED FINES 500. 00 00 811. 66 311. 66     -. 62%
35160 COUNTY CWRT FINES & COST 6, 000. 00 81. 27 1, 927. 42 4, 072. 58      . 67%
35200 DRUG CONTRIBUTIONS 2, 500. 00 203. 06 1, 721. 22 778. 78      . 31%
36100 INTEREST EARNINGS- GEN/ SEN 1, 000. 00 414. 64 2, 325. 20       - 1, 325. 20    - 1. 32%

36200 INTEREST EARNINGS- STATE STREET AID 200. 00 38. 43 236. 17 36. 17     -. 18%
36300 INTEREST EARNINGS- DRUG FUND 50. 00 5. 27 32. 37 17. 63      . 35%

36716 POLICE CN[ LD SAFETY SEAT FUND 00 00 00 00      . 00%

36932 PROCEEDS FRdA INSURANCE 00 00 00 00      . 00%
36990 MISCELLANEWS REVENUE 18, 000. 00 31, 711. 40 48, 307. 44      - 30, 307. 44    - 1. 68%

36991 TELECOIMAUNICATIONS REVENUE 400. 00 43. 30 278. 98 121. 02      . 30%
36992 REIMBURSE YRECKER SERVICES 100. 00 00 00 100. 00 1. 00%
36993 SEXUAL OFFENDER REGISTRY REVENUE 100. 00 200. 00 200. 00 700. 00    - 1. 00%

36994 ALCOHOL TRAINING CLASSES 00 00 00 00      . 00%



36995 DONATION VETERANS MEMORIAL LtALL 200. 00 00 1, 470. 00       - 1, 270. 00    - 6. 35%       DECEMBER 2014
Uncollected Revenue

SHOULD NOT

BE OVER 50%.



SEL: Year Fnd Accnt Obj Gp Sub Loc. Pgm TOLIN OF MWNT CARMEL PAGE:     2 DECEMBER 2014
GENERAL FUND

FROM: 2014 110 30000 000 00 000 0000 000 REVENUE REPORT Jan 22, 2015 Uncollected Revenue
TNRU: 2014 110 39999 000 00 000 0000 000 REPORT DATE: 12/ 31/ 2014 11: 15 AM SHOULD NOT

ESTIMATED MONTH- TO- DATE YEAR- TO- DATE UNCOLLECTED UNCOLLED
BE OVER 5O%.

IACCWNT/ DESCRIPTION............................ I REVENUES I REVENUE I REVENUE I REVENUE IXOF BUD6I

36996 GUN PERMIT CLASSES 00 00 00 00      . 00X

37301 BULLETPROOF VESTS 00 00 00 00      . 00%
37990 OTHER AVAILABLE FUNDS GENERAL 474, 764. 00 00 00 474, 764. 00 1. 00%
37991 OTHER AVAILABLE FUNDS- SSA 20, 000. 00 00 00 20, 000. 00 1. 00%
37993 OTHER AVAILABLE FUNDS - DRUG FUND 32, 000. 00 00 00 32, 000. 00 1. 00%

Total: GENERAL FUND 2, 734, 600. 00 505, 154. 76 1, 277, 221. 25 1, 457, 378. 75      . 53%



SEL: Year Fnd Accnt Obj Gp Sub Loc. Pgm TONN OF MWNT CARMEL PpGE:     1 DECEMBER 2014
GENERAL FUND

FROM: 2014 110 40000 000 00 000 0000 000 EXPENDITURE REPORT Jan 22, 2015 Should stillhave
THRU: 2014 110 99999 999 00 000 0000 000 REPORT DATE: 12/ 31/ 2014 10: 31 nM 50% of your

IIAPPROPRIATIONI
MONTH- TO-

DATEI
YEAR- TO- DATE

I
WTSTANDING

I
AVAILABLE IAVL

FNDSI
funds available.

ACCWNT/ DESCRIPTION............................      AMWNT EXPEND[ TURES EXPENDITURES ENCUMBRANCES FUNDS YAF BUDG Should neverhave



SEL: Year Fnd Accnt Obj Gp Sub Loc. Pgm TONN OF MWNT CARMEL PAGE:     2 DECEMBER 2014
GENERAL fUND

FROM: 2014 110 40000 000 00 000 0000 000 EXPEND[ TURE REPORT Jan 22, 2015 Should atillhave
THRU: 2014 110 99999 999 00 000 0000 000 REPORT DATE: 12/ 31/ 2014 0 31 +____  50% of your

APPROPRIATION MONTH- TO- DATE YEAR- TO- DATE WTSTANDING AVAILABLE AVL FNDS funds available.
ACCWNT/ DESCRIPTION............................ I AMWNT I EXPENDITURESI EXPENDITURES I ENCUMBRANCES I FUNDS I% OF BUDGI Should neverhave



SEL: Year Fnd Accnt Obj Gp Sub Loc. Pgm TONN OF MWNT CARMEL PAGE:     3 DECEMBER 2014
GENERAL FUND

FROM: 2014 110 40000 000 00 000 0000 000 EXPENDITURE REPORT Jan 22, 2015 Should stillhave
THRU: 2014 110 99999 999 00 000 0000 000 REPORT DATE: 72/ 31/ 2014 10: 31 AM 50% of your



SEL: Year Fnd Accnt Obj Gp Sub Loc. Pgm T041N OF MWNT CARMEL PAGE:     4 DECEMBER 2014
GENERAL FUND

fROM: 2014 110 40000 000 00 000 0000 000 EXPENDITURE REPORT Jan 22, 2015 Should stillhave
THRU: 2014 110 99999 999 00 000 0000 000 REPORT DATE: 12/ 31/ 2014 10• 31 AM

0 y



SEL: Year Fnd Accnt Obj Gp Sub Loc. Pgm TOLIN OF MWNT CARMEL PAGE:     5 DECEMBER 2014
GENERAL FUND

FRqA: 2074 110 40000 000 00 000 0000 000 EXPENDITURE REPORT Jan 22, 2015 Should stilihave
THRU: 2014 110 99999 999 00 000 0000 000 REPORT DATE: 12/ 31/ 2014 10: 31 AM____  SO% Of y0U1'

APPROPRIATiON MONTH- TO- DATE YEAR- TO- DATE WTSTANDING AVAILABLE AVL FNDS funds available.IACCWNT/ DESCRIPTION............................ I AMWNT I EXPENDITURESI EXPENDITURES I ENCUMBRANCES I FUNDS IXOF BUDGI Should neverhave

43100- 141 SOCIAL SECURITY 76, 000. 00 771. 73 4, 614. 32 00 11, 385. 68      . 71% a neaaUve.

43100- i42 EMPLOYEE INSURANCE 92, 000. 00 8, 249. 34 27, 800. 38 00 64, 199. 62      . 69%
43100- 143 RETIREMENT 22, 000. 00 1, 168. 00 6, 218. 48 00 15, 781. 52      . 71%
43100- 146 WORKERS COMP 25, 000. 00 4, 402. 15 13, 541. 23 00 11, 458. 77      . 45%

43100- 147 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 540. 00 00 26. 27 00 513. 73      . 95%
43100- 148 TRAINING 1, 000. 00 00 00 00 1, 000. 00 1. 00%
43100- 216 INTERNET SERVICES 1, 500. 00 121. 47 606. 24 00 893. 76      . 59%

43100- 240 UTILITIES 7, 200. 00 884. 60 2, 325. 38 00 4, 874. 62      . 67%
43100- 245 TELEPHONE 5, 300. 00 526. 07 1, 586. 99 00 3, 713. Ot      . 70%

43100- 251 MEDICAL SERVICES 500. 00 00 170. 46 00 329. 54      . 65%
43100- 266 REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE BUILDIN 10, 000. 00 233. 43 941. 28 00 9, 058. 72      . 90%
43100- 268 REPAIR & MA1NT. STREETS 20, 000. 00 647. 89 4, 079. 01 00 15, 920. 99      . 79%

43100- 280 TRAVEL 1, 000. 00 00 00 00 1, 000. 00 1. 00%
43100- 294 EOUIPMENT LEASING 500. 00 00 00 00 500. 00 1. 00%
43100- 310 OfFICE EXPENSE AND POSTAGE 1, 000. 00 00 00 00 1, 000. 00 1. 00%

43100- 320 OPERATING SUPPLIES  _______________  ___ _ 5, 000. 00__ _ ___  . 426. 59 ___ 2 704. 84___  ____ 00 2, 295. 16      . 45%
43100- 326 CLOTHING AND UNIFORMS 4, 000. 00 81 39 81 39 00 3, 918. 61      . 97%
43100- 330 VEHICLE OPERATING EXPENSE 25, 000. 00 480. 28 4, 232. 66 00 20, 767. 34      . 83X

43700- 331 FUEL EXPENSE 30, 000. 00 1, 335. 03 9, 281. 56 00 20, 718. 44      . 69%

43100- 343 TRAFFIC LIGHT TDOT/ MPO STUDY 00 00 00 00 00      . 00%
43100- 479 M[ SCELLANEWS 1, 500. 00 00 8. 49 00 1, 491. 51      . 99%
43100- 482 DRAINAGE REPAIR 10, 000. 00 112. 50 6, 484. 97 00 3, 515. 03      . 35%

43100- 931 PAVING     ----.----"---------- 3y. Zi@2Q_----_____< DO  3.. 1 8------__. 92---_' ZI. 4$--.-` 44%----  
43100- 940 EOU[ PMENT 16, 000. 00 8, 502. 50 16, 000. 00 00 00      . 00X

37XTotaL: HIGHWAYS AND STREETS- GENERAL 828, 776. 00 39, 749. 89 516, 368. 64 00 312, 40736  /

ACC- 43190) STATE STREET AID
C

43190- 247 STREET LIGHTING 43, 500. 00 3, 913. 18 20, 930. 88 00 22, 569. 12      . 51X
43190- 342 SIGN PARTS AND SUPPLIES 5, 000. 00 00 2, 720. 98 00 2, 279. 02      . 45%
43790- 343 TRAFFIC LIGHT TDOT/ MPO STUDY 3, 000. 00 276. 28 680. 72 00 2, 319. 28      . 77%
43190- 400 MATERIALS & STREETS 81, 000. 00 00 3, 275. 44 00 77, 724. 56      . 95X
43190- 621 RETIREMENT OF NOTES ( PD/ CT PROG 8 PDVE 00 00 00 00 00      . 00%
43190- 642 INTEREST ON NOTES 00 00 00 00 00      . 00%
43190- 931 PAVING 00 00 00 00 00      . 00%
43190- 940 EOUIPMENT 25, 000. 00 5, 057. 98 5, 057. 98 00 19, 942. 02

TotaL: STATE STREET A1D 157, 500. 00 9, 187. 44 32, 666. 00 00 124, 834. 00 79j
ACC- 43200) SOLID YASTE & RECYCLING

43200- 121 WAGES 32, 000. 00 2, 364. 28 16, 480. 68 00 75, 519. 32      . 48X
43200- 122 OVERTIME 3, 000. 00 00 118. 49 00 2, 881. 51      . 96%
43200- 141 SOCIAL SECURITY 2, 600. 00 165. 51 1, 114. 26 00 1, 485. 74      . 57%
43200- 142 EMPLOYEE INSURANLE 20, 000. 00 1, 027. 34 5, 004. 06 00 14, 995. 92      . 74%
43200- 143 RETIREMENT 3, 800. 00 227. 18 1, 723. 01 00 2, 076. 99      . 54%
43200- 146 NORKERS COMP 3, 200. 00 607. 52 1, 865. 45 00 1, 334. 55      . 41%
43200- 147 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 90. 00 00 00 00 90. 00 7. 00%
43200- 251 MEDICAL SERVICES 200. 00 00 00 00 200. 00 1. 00%
43200- 290 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 161, 425. 00 13, 007. 94 65, 009. 70 00 96, 415. 30      . 59%
43200- 320 OPERATING SUPPLIES 300. 00 00 00 00 300. 00 1. 00%

43200- 330 VEHICLE OPERATING EXPENSE 5, 500. 00 360. 99 4, 408. 38 00 1, 091. 62      . 19%

A--....
r«_.....,,,.,..  ,....,,._.... n..._ ..,_,,

af,:-...,.,.,,..,..._-..„. a.....,...._.._.,.-.-,,.,.,,,..,.   .-..,.•.,,.,-,«„.,.,
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SEL: Year Fnd Accnt Obj Gp Sub Loc. Pgm TOHN OF MWNT CARMEL PAGE:     6 DECEMBER 2014
GENERAL FUND

FROM: 2014 170 40000 000 00 000 0000 000 EXPENDITURE REPORT Jan 22, 2015

ChOUld
St111h8V@

THRU: 2014 170 99999 999 00 000 0000 000 REPORT DATE: 12/ 31/ 2074 10: 31_ AM____  JO% Of yOU

IIAPPROPR[

ATIONI
MONTN- TO-

DATEI
YEAR- TO- DATE

I
WTSTANDING

I
AVAILABLE IAVL FNDS      funds available.

ACCOUNT/ DESCRIPTION............................      AMWNT EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES ENCUMBRANCES FUNDS      % OF BUDG Should neverhave



SEL: Year Fnd Accnt Obj Gp Sub Loc. Pgm TOHN OF MOUNT CARMEL PAGE:     7 DECEMBER 201 4
GENERAL FUND

FROM: 2014 110 40000 000 00 000 0000 000 EXPENDITURE REPORT Jan 22, 2015 Should stillhave

THRU: 2014 110 99999 999 00 000 0000 000 REPORT DATE: 12/ 31/ 2014 10: 31 AM 50% of your

IIAPPROPR[

ATIONI
MONTH- TO-

DATEI
YEAR- TO- DATE

I
WTSTANDING

I
AVAILABLE IAVL FNDS      funds available.

ACCWNT/ DESCRIPTION............................      AMWNT EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES ENCUMBRANCES FUNDS      % OF BUDG Should neverhave

44800- 940 E UIPMENT 00 00 00 00 00      . 00% a neaative.

64%Total: L[ BRARY 45, 330. 00 2, 655. 55 16, 261. 41 00 29, 068. 59

ACC- 52200) SEWER

52200- 146 WORKERS COMP 00 00 00 00 00      . 00X

52200- 255 COMPUTER NARDWARE & SOFTWARE SUPPORT 00 00 00 00 00      . 00%
52200- 260 REPAIR AND MAIN. SERVICES 00 00 00 00 00      . 00%

52200- 361 PUMP STATION REPAIR 8 MAINTENANCE 00 00 00 00 00      . 00%

52200- 364 WASTEWATER PLANT REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 00 00 00 00 00      . 00%
52200- 955 BELT PRESS/ ROTO ROOTER MAINTENANCE 00 00 00 00 00      . 00X

Total: SENER 00 00 00 00 00      . 00X

TotaL: GENERAL FUND 2_ 725_ 791 00 __ _ 215_ 562_ 03 __ 1_ 321_ 010_ 40 __________ _ 00 __ 1_ 404_ 780_ 60  ___ 51%



SEL: Year Fnd Accnt Obj Gp Sub Loc. Pgm TOWN OF MWNT CARMEL PAGE:     1 DECEMBER 2014
SELIER FUND

UIICOII8Ct8fI RBVBOU@FROM: 2014 412 30000 000 00 000 0000 000 REVENUE REPORT Jan 22, 2015
SHOULD NOTTHRU: 2014 412 39999 000 00 000 0000 000 REPORT DATE: 12/ 31/ 2014 11: 15 AM

BE OVER SO%.
IACCWNT/ DESCRIPTION............................ I EREVNUES I MONREVENUEATEI

YEAREVENUETE

I
UNREVENUEED

IXOFOBUDGI
36100 INTEREST EARNINGS- GEN/ SEW 900. 00 154. 14 541. 94 358. 06      . 39%
36120 INTEREST EARNINGS - TLDA 500. 00 00 00 500. 00 1. 00%
36330 SALE OF EGUIPMENT 00 00 00 00      . 00%
37210 SEWER SERVICES CHARGES 770, 000. 00 57, 765. 97 386, 265. 98 383, 734. 02      . 49%
37294 ACCWNTING FEES 3, 500. 00 705. 00 2, 345. 00 1, 155. 00      . 33%
37295 CDBG GRANT 5500, 000 2012 525, 000. 00 00 00 525, 000. 00 1. 00%
37296 SEWER TAP FEES 3, 000. 00 00 5, 000. 00       - 2, 000. 00     -. 66%
37297 EECBG GRANT FOR 2010- 2011 00 00 00 00      . 00%
37299 MISCELLANWS REVENUE 100. 00 00 00 100. 00 1. 00%
37994 OTHER AVAILABLE FUNDS - SEWER 20, 500. 00 00 00 20, 500. 00 1. 00%

Total: SEWER FUND 1, 323, 500. 00 58, 025. 11 394, 152. 92 929, 347. 08      . 70%



SEL: Year Fnd Accnt Obj Gp Sub Loc. Pgm TONN OF MWNT CARMEL PAGE:     i DECEMBER 2014
SENER fUND

FROM: 2014 412 40000 000 00 000 0000 000 EXPENDITURE REPORT Jan 22, 2015 ould stiilhave

THRU: 2014 412 99999 999 00 000 0000 000 REPORT DATE: 12/ 31/ 2014 09: 57 AM____  5O% Of/ OU



SEL: Year Fnd Accnt Obj Gp Sub Loc. Pgm TOHN OF MOUNT CARMEL PAGE:     2 DECEMBER 2014
SENER FUND

FROM: 2014 412 40000 000 00 000 0000 000 EXPENDITURE REPORT Jan 22, 2015 Should stillhave
THRU: 2014 412 99999 999 00 000 0000 000 REPORT DATE: 12/ 31/ 2014 09: 57 AM____   JO% Of yOU

APPROPRIAT[ ON MONTH- TO- DATE YEAR- TO- DATE IXITSTANDING AVAILABLE AVL FNDS funds available.IACCWNT/ DESCRIPTION............................)     AMWNT I EXPENDITURESI EXPENDITURES I ENCUMBRANCES I FUNDS IYAF BUDGI Should neverhave

52200- 635 TLDA INTEREST 13, 853. 00 1, 224. 62 8, 572. 29 00 5, 280. 71      . 38% 
a neaative.

52200- 642 INTEREST ON NOTES 230. 00 00 229. 79 00 21      . 00X

52200- 643 INTEREST ON NOTES 12, 338. 00 00 6, 386. 00 00 5, 952. 00      . 48%

52200- 691 BANK SERVICE CHARGES 500. 00 00 00 00 500. 00 1. 00%

52200- 940 EGUIPMENT 00 00 00 00 00      . 00%

52200- 952 BFI SLUDGE DISPOSAL 8 000 00 00 9 675 93 00       - 1. 675. 93     -. 20%

52200- 955 BELT PRESS/ ROTO ROOTER MAINTENANCE 3. 000. 00 4 603. 50 4, 603. 50 00       - 1. 603. 50     -. 53%
52200- 956 SEWER PLANT BLONERS 5, 000. 00 00 507. 45 00 4, 492. 55      . 89X

Total: SEIJER 1, 322, 118. 00 68, 487. 97 377, 258. 22 00 944, 859. 78      . 71X

Total: SEYER FUND 1, 322, 118. 00 68, 487. 97 377, 258. 22 00 944, 859. 78      . 71%

a.-
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CASH ON HAND REPORT

TOWN OF MT. CARMEL

AS OF 12/3112014

GENERALACCOUNT

General 2, 054,516. 54

Restricted Police Drug Reserve Fund as 11130/ 14 ACNaI 37,346. 46

Restricted State SheetAid( SSA)      as 11/ 30l14 ncmai 133,OOt80

Required Fund Balance 1, 061, 149. 09 Est, as 3 montnsfund ba ance,'
tt

55Q000 needed to make to next year

265, 750+ 164, 236+ q4, 17g

Assigned FY2015 BudgeY Retained Earning5 474, 164. 00 USED TO BALANCE BUDGE7, OR 14d19 8 ORD 14-023

UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE 348, 855. 19

tia

t

RESTRICTED SAVINGS ACCOUNTS

26007864 Capital OuUay General Fund 367, 49625

26007856 Emergency Fund General 58, 676.50

26009175 Civil War Grant 752. 60

SEWER ACCOUNT

Sewer 266,229. 32

Depreciation Fund As of 6/ 30/ 13 216,975.00

Assigned FY 2015 Budget 20, 500. 00$ 20, 000+ 500 used to balance budget and

ortlinance 14 19

UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE Zg, 75q, 3p

3
s

RESTRICTED SAVINGS ACCOUNTS

26010140 Sewer Savings 2014 484, 609. 61

26007872 Capital Outlay Sewer Fund 210, 667. 54

26010090 Bond Reserve 2014 59, 764. 94

r

i CURRENT INTEREST RATE AT BANK as of 5A7N3 0. 05°h
i
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